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Corporate Profile

i Jilip)y

Lifestyle Properties Development Limited (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) is principally engaged in property development and
property investment with the main objective of generating return through
capital appreciation, including subsequent disposal of the properties
concerned. The Group endeavours to enhance its income and the capital
value of its properties through a range of different approaches after
assessing the conditions of such properties at acquisition. Generally, the
Group will continue to develop those properties which are under
development and will renovate those completed properties to enhance
their capital value further. In addition, the Group will lease the properties
out when reasonable rental income can be generated from such
properties. The business model of the Group is not only buying and
holding properties for rental income and/or short term capital gain, but
also carrying out value added work or activities to enhance the capital
value of the properties before they are leased out or sold. In order to
maximise the return on the properties, either in the form of capital
appreciation or increased rental, management of the Company has been
making active efforts throughout the years to carry out value-added work
on the properties (including construction, redesign and renovation) as
well as making appropriate and timely decisions for disposing of or
leasing out the properties. As the Group’s main objective is to achieve
capital appreciation, the Group may sell its properties at various levels or
stages of development, should opportunities arise. The management of
the Group is of the view that, under present business and operating
conditions, the Group is inclined to seek maximum return through capital
gains, rather than recurring income in the form of rental.

All of the properties currently held by the Group are for commercial use
or non-residential use. While it is the Company’s intention to focus on
this area, it also intends to look for suitable development opportunities
which may include residential elements. The Group’s management team
has experience in developing both commercial and residential properties.
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Principal Banker
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditor
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Solicitor
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office

(Branch Registrar)
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House
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Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 2183

Board lot: 2,000 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Closing share price at 31 December 2014: HK$1.28

Market Capitalization at 31 December 2014: HK$536 million

Compliance Advisor
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review

Turnover

The Group ceased to generate any rental income following disposal of
the Tianjin property in April 2013.As the Group's other investment
properties remained vacant during the year, no turnover was recorded in
the year of 2014.

Loss/Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$13.9 million (2013: profit of HK$58.7 million). During
the year, the Group did not generate any rental income from its
investment properties and the only income sources comprised mainly
interest income from bank deposits and project management services
income from its parent company Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
("LIHL"), which in aggregate, were not sufficient to cover the Group’s
operating costs.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses comprised mainly building related expenses and tax,
utilities charges, legal and professional fees and rental expenses. The
amount decreased from approximately HK$15.6 million in 2013 to
approximately HK$10.0 million in 2014, due mainly to the cessation of
the leasing business at Li Hua Jia (Tianjin) following the disposal of the
interest therein in April 2013.

Other income, gains and losses

It mainly represented bank interest income and project management
services income. The decrease from approximately HK$44.0 million in
2013 to approximately HK$20.2 million in 2014 was mainly attributable
to the absence this year of a net exchange gain of approximately HK$22.2
million recorded in 2013 primarily arising from translating HKD
denominated monetary assets and liabilities.

Staff costs

Staff cost for the year increased 83% to approximately HK$20.0 million.
The higher staff costs were mainly due to increase in headcounts. On the
contrary, staff costs incurred before disposal of the Group’s property in
Tianjin in April 2013 related mainly to staff working for the then property
leasing operation in Tianjin.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation was mainly in respect of the property,
plant and equipment in the PRC. The decrease of HK$1.2 million from
2013 was a result of certain assets being fully depreciated during the
year.

Loss/Gain from investment properties

During the year, the Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss of
approximately HK$3.1 million from the Group's investment properties.
On the contrary, the same group of investment properties recorded
unrealised fair value gain of approximately HK$6.5 million in 2013, in
addition to a realised gain of approximately HK$56.9 million upon
disposal of the investment property holding subsidiary in Tianjin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Fair value changes on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

This represented the estimated fair value change on the Group’s 10%
equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian Property Development Company
Limited, a single project property development company whose
commercial units had started the pre-sale. No such fair value change was
recorded during the year (2013: loss of HK$0.7 million).

Finance costs
No interest cost was incurred for the year as the related loan from fellow
subsidiary has been fully repaid since 2013 (2013: HK$0.5 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group was debt free and had no
contracted financial instrument. Fixed deposits and cash and bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$566.1 million (2013:
approximately HK$285.7 million), of which approximately 88% were held
at banks in Hong Kong (2013: approximately 66%) and the remaining
approximately 12% were deposited with banks in the PRC (2013:
approximately 34%). Approximately 79% of the bank balances were
denominated in RMB and the remaining is in United States Dollar (“USD")
and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"). The Group did not have any banking
facilities available at 31 December 2014 but will make appropriate
banking facility arrangements when required (2013: nil).

Pledge of assets
At 31 December 2014, none of the Group's assets was pledged (2013:
nil).

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure incurred by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately HK$42.4 million, primarily
relating to site preparatory work in respect of the land under development
in Shenyang (2013: HK$45.1 million).

Material acquisition, disposal and significant events
The Group did not have material acquisition, disposal and significant
event during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014
(2013: nil).

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is RMB
in which most of their transactions and assets are denominated. The
Group does not have significant foreign currency transactions which may
expose the Group to foreign currency risk, apart from holding certain
bank balances which is denominated in USD and HKD. As the
appreciating trend of the RMB has only started to reverse since last year
and given the relatively small exposure in currencies other than the
functional currency, the Group has not taken any measures to hedge the
foreign currency exposure but will monitor closely the situation.
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Review of Operations

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment with the main objective of generating return through capital
appreciation, including subsequent disposal of the properties concerned.
Besides, the Group also carries out value-added work or activities to
enhance the capital value of the properties before they are leased out or
sold. During the year, no properties were leased out or sold by the Group.

Leveraging the management team with much experience in property
development and project management, the Group continued during the
year providing project management services to LIHL. These services are
charged on a cost-plus basis and constitute continuing connected
transaction for the Group. The Group will continue looking for similar
business opportunities in the market to broaden its revenue base.

Property investment

The Group's portfolio of investment properties includes certain properties
in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the year, no rental income was
generated from the Group's investment properties as all of them were
left vacant. It is the intention of the Group to continue selling these
investment properties, both in Hong Kong and in the PRC, although the
Group would not rule out the possibility of leasing some of them out for
rental purposes should opportunities with attractive terms arise. At the
year-end, the Group was working to apply for the real estate title
certificate for the Harbin Property and the Group's intention to dispose of
the Harbin Property and other investment properties remains unchanged.

Property development

The Yifu Land situated in Shenyang, Liaoning Province, the PRC, is
currently the only development project of the Group. The Group plans to
develop, in two phases, a commercial complex with a three-level
basement consisting of retail shops, offices, car parking spaces and other
facilities on the Yifu Land. The Group is still working on the final design
plan with the relevant government authorities in order to obtain the
various approvals and permits before construction work can be
commenced. Based on the current progress, the Board expects there will
be further delay in getting such approvals and thereby construction work
is unlikely to commence in the first half of 2015.

Outlook and Plan

The Yifu Land will remain the Group’s only development project in the
foreseeable future as no new site or property has yet been identified for
investment or development purposes. Much of the Group’s financial
resources will be allocated to the development of the Yifu Land in the
next few years, once the final design scheme is approved. Situated at a
relatively prime location in Shenhe District and next to LIHL's department
store, the Group has confidence in the future prospects of this project.

All of the properties currently held by the Group are of commercial or
non-residential nature. While the Group intends to continue focusing on
commercial properties, it will also seek opportunities in project which may
include elements of residential property. The Group’s management team
has experiences in developing both commercial and residential properties
and has geared up for opportunities in China’s rapid urbanization and the
country’s growing demand for both commercial and residential
properties. The Group will take steps to identify potential land parcels at
strategic locations, which are suitable for property development and
investment and to expand its land bank in both Hong Kong and Mainland
China when opportunities arise.
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Corporate Governance Report

(e SRS

Corporate Governance Principles and Practices

The board of directors (“Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintain good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company has adopted the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as its
guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Board

1.

8

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of seven
directors, including two executive directors, two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-executive
directors with one of whom being a certified public accountant.

The Board believes that the balance between executive and non-
executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the Company. The directors possess different professional
qualification and knowledge and industry experience and expertise,
which enable them to make valuable and diversified advice and
guidance to the Group’s business activities and development.

The Company adopted the board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy, and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. The directors’
biographies, including the relationships among the directors are set
out in the “Profile of Directors” in this annual report.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under
the Listing Rules. The Company has received written confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and the Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors meet the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are therefore independent.
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Chairman and Executive Directors

The chairman of the Board is responsible for setting overall strategic
planning of the Group whereas the executive directors are
responsible, in addition to assisting in setting the Group's strategic
plan, for implementing the Board’s decisions, monitoring and
supervising the Group'’s overall performance, ensuring adequate
capital and managerial resources are available to implement the
business strategies being adopted from time to time, setting out
and monitoring targets, plans and direction for management,
reporting to the Board on the Group’s performance and proposing
business plans and strategies for further evaluation and assessment
by the Board.

The positions of the chairman of the Board and the two executive
directors are currently held by three different individuals for the
purpose of ensuring an effective segregation of duties and a
balance of power and authority.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring performance of
management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the executive
directors, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company. The directors are aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to the Company and all the
shareholders in respect of the manner in which the affairs of the
Company are being controlled and managed.

The directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the executive directors and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.
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4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the members after his

appointment (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next

following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of

an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at

the same general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a term of three years and all directors
(including non-executive directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and are subject to re-
election in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

5. Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The Board held four regular meetings during the year to review
among other things quarterly operating performance of the Group

and approve the Group's interim and annual results announcements

and financial statements.

Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association. During
the year, other than Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson who attended
only two of the regular meetings, all Board members attended all
four of the regular meetings.

During the year, one additional Board meeting was held to review
and approve some business related matters and only the executive
and non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy,
Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and

Mr. Wong Man Hoi, attended such meeting.

6. Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee
Meetings
The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant

Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.
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7. Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development
Induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company will be provided to each newly appointed director. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills, and provide updates to
all directors on the regulatory requirements as necessary.

During the year, all directors were provided by the Company with
relevant reading materials issued by the Stock Exchange regarding
amendments to the Listing Rules in respect of (i) connected
transactions and (i) definition of connected person and associate.
The two executive directors also attended a directors’ training
regarding directors’ duties with relevant case studies conducted by
Platinum Securities Company Limited, the compliance advisor of the
Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in the shares of the Company.

In response to a specific enquiry by the Company, all directors confirmed
that they complied with the requirements of the Model Code throughout
the year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on
a going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of
the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to
ensure the continued objectivity and independence of the external
auditor. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company were approximately
HK$0.4 million and approximately HK$0.3 million in respect of the audit
and non-audit services provided to the Group respectively. Details of the
significant non-audit service and the related amount are as follows:

Review of interim financial information

for the six months ended 30 June 2014 HK$0.3 million
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Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in

discharging its responsibilities.

1.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Kun
Kau, all are independent non-executive directors. None of them s,
or has previously been, the partner of the Company’s current or
previous external auditor. The audit committee is chaired by Mr.
Lam Siu Lun, Simon, who is a certified public accountant. The audit
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

1. consider the service and appointment of the Company’s
external auditor, nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fee;

2. review and approve changes in accounting policies and
practices, to review effectiveness of the financial reporting
system and process and its compliance with applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements;

3. oversee adequacy of the Group'’s financial reporting process,
internal control procedures and risk management system;

4. assist the Board in overseeing the proper preparation of the
Group's financial statements and interim and annual reports;
and

5. perform the corporate governance duties as set out in the CG
Code.

The audit committee held three meetings during the year. Other
than Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson who attended one meeting, all
committee members attended all three meetings.

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed and discussed
with the external auditor the audit planning report before
commencement of the annual audit; (ii) reviewed and discussed
with the external auditor on the Group’s interim and annual
financial statements before they were submitted to the Board for
consideration and approval; (iii) reviewed and discussed with the
external auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group; and (iv) reviewed the external auditor’s audit findings, if
any. No material issues were noted by the audit committee which
were required to be reported to the Board for the year.
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On 12 March 2015, the members of the audit committee met to (i)
review with the Company’s external auditor the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 ("2014 Consolidated Financial Statements”), including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group; (ii) note
the training and continuous professional development of the
directors for the year ended 31 December 2014; and (jii) review the
corporate governance report. The audit committee resolved to
recommend the 2014 Consolidated Financial Statements for the
approval of the Board in the next Board meeting.

The audit committee also recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company'’s external auditor for the year ending 31 December 2015
and that the related resolution shall be put forth for the
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the Company’s 2015
annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun,
Simon who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Mr.
Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Kun Kau. The
remuneration committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
requirements of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available
on the Company’s website.

The principal role of the remuneration committee is to provide
advice and recommendation to the Board on (i) the remuneration
package of directors and senior management; (ii) on any specific
remuneration package with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals against preset goals
and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, on any compensation policy for termination of office of
directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. All
committee members, other than Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson,
attended the meeting. In the meeting, the remuneration committee
reviewed and recommended for the Board'’s approval the
remuneration package of directors and senior management for the
year.

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon,

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Kun Kau and two
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who
is the chairman of the nomination committee, and Mr. Wong Man
Hoi. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
requirements of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available
on the Company’s website.
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The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and

4. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. All
committee members, other than Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson,
attended the meeting. In the meeting, the nomination committee (i)
reviewed the existing structure, size and composition of the Board,;
(i) confirmed independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and (iii) made recommendation to the Board on the
proposed re-election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance and

Indemnity

To indemnify directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution
of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has
arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

Internal Control Framework

1.

14

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control for the Group to safeguard
interests of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all
times.

The Group's system of internal control which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help
the achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for external publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the operational systems for the achievement of the
Group's objectives.

o
m
o
0
i

S SZEFERENT :

1. EMELEFROIESENRE A
BNAR (BREXE - MREERTT
) U ERREEARBHN A A
REMBHEESRIELNEBRE
FERNER

2. YEABAEERAETEFEHA
T WHERAABEATHEESS
PLAEFEREER

3. FHMRENMIFAITERMELE R

4. BREFZREXREFZEUAREZ(CL
HRIFERTRAR) EBETEINE
MEEREESREESR -

FAIRBEZESERITINEHE LG
SRR E S ERME - AR ¢ (i)
REBUIERTES 2B Ri)mES
SEENIBRITZBREAFAG LEE
B EE B 2 2 & FrRobert Charles
Nicholson e A= R fE LA F&:54h - 22E 8

ENEVBEHRZREH °

EFNSABE2EERBKREE

RBEEERARFSEBERNTRETRS
ZBEREERMELZMEER KE 18
K FAXRES  ARBESHLLHAERR

A ERESIELRE
1. RAFEEE

Lifestyle Properties Development Limited Annual Report 2014

EESABEEREREREAEERIFRSE
W2 MEBEEIEHIE R A AR Mz
AR BEEEEANBEEFIIRE -

AEENABEZZARBRATERRE
NAAREER - AGBEBEZEBERS
REBEANAREREEAHEIE - FER
HE NS RESUMRTIL AR A 526
BB A EE R R B INER - AR
MABBADIRR - LAEZERRE R
BE(EXIFHEY) RELEENKERL
HIEK WER(BIIFFTERHEER) EER
RRRAEERAEEZBER -



Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material
factors related to financial, operational and compliance controls,
various functions for risk management and physical and information
systems security. The audit committee had been reported during
the audit committee meetings of key findings identified by the
Company'’s external auditor and discussed findings and actions or
measures taken in addressing those findings relating to the Group'’s
internal controls. No material issues on the system of internal
control have been identified during the year which required
significant rectification works.

The Board has, working in conjunction with senior management,
conducted an annual review on the audit work carried out by the
internal audit team during the year as well as discussed the audit
plans and monitored subsequent implementation of measures for

improving the internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2. Internal Audit Function
The internal audit function provided by Lifestyle International

Holdings Limited is about conducting regular review of the Group’s

internal control procedures, including accounting system and
operational procedures, and recommendations will be made for
necessary actions. The management considers the present work

arrangement of the internal audit function is effective having taking

into account the current organizational structure, lines of
responsibility, authority of the management team and the risks

associated with the operations of the Group. The management and

audit committee review and monitor closely the internal audit
function and are committed to strengthening it as and when

necessary. In addition to the agreed scheduled work, other review
and investigative work of the Group’s business on an ad hoc basis

may be conducted when it is required.

Commitment to Transparency
The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the

Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysts’ briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our

executive directors and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in

building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential

investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements
in force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the

shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant

announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in
the form of preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual

reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also provides an
important opportunity for constructive communication between the

Board and the shareholders. Other than Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, all
the directors attended the annual general meeting of the Company held

on 14 April 2014.
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In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with the
disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential
investors have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally
available information released by the Group.

Shareholders” Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
shareholder(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the
Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director
are set out under the “Investor Relations” on the homepage of the
Company'’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle Properties Development Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2831-2932
Email: info@Isppty.com.hk

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 53, joined the Company in August 2013. She is also
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. She is primarily responsible
for the administration aspects of the Group and heads the finance
department and human resources department as the director of
administration of the Group. She holds the degree of Master of Business
Administration and the degree of Bachelor of Laws. Ms. Chan is also a
director of two private companies ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Lau
Luen Hung, Thomas.

Ms. Chan worked in Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (“LIHL", a
listed company in Hong Kong, stock code: 1212) from 2005 to 2013. Her
last position with LIHL was head of new project division.

Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy

Ms. Chan, aged 56, joined the Company in August 2013. She is also
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. She is primarily responsible
for the operational, sales and leasing aspects of the Group and heads the
sales and leasing department, project management department, property
management department, budget and quantity survey department and
project administration department as the director of operation, sales and
leasing of the Group.

Ms. Chan holds a Higher Certificate in Valuation and Property
Management and a Master degree of Project Management. She is a
member of the Australian Institute of Project Management, an ordinary
member of the Asian Knowledge Management Association and a full
member of the Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.
Ms. Chan has over 21 years of experience in project management and
property development, sales and leasing and management in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Ms. Chan worked in LIHL from 2001 to 2013. Her last position with LIHL
was head of project development division.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Mr. Lau, aged 60, joined the Company in August 2013. He is also the
chairman of the Board, who focuses principally on strategic planning of
the Group. He is the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Lau has been the executive director and chief executive
officer of LIHL since January 2004, as well as director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Lau is currently a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee and a member of the
board of directors of Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC.

Mr. Wong Man Hoi

Mr. Wong, aged 56, joined the Company in August 2013. He is also a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wong
focuses principally on giving strategic advice and recommendations on
the operations of the Group. Mr. Wong is a member of the Law Society
of Hong Kong and has been a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong since 1994
and was admitted to be a solicitor of England and Wales in 1995. Mr.
Wong obtained the degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from
the University of Hong Kong in November 1981 and Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of London, the United Kingdom in August
1990. Mr. Wong is the senior director — Legal (but not a director for
purpose of the Companies Ordinance) and the company secretary of New
World Development Company Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong,
stock code: 17).
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (BA, ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 65, joined the Company in August 2013. He is also the
chairman of the audit and remuneration committees of the Company and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Lam
graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November 1973 with a
Bachelor degree of Arts. After graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat
Marwick and obtained his qualification as a Chartered Accountant from
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in 1979 and
Certified Public Accountant from the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
(now known as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
in 1980. Mr. Lam was admitted as a fellow member of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in 1992. Mr. Lam has been a practicing
accountant for over 25 years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L. Lam &
Company, a firm of certified public accountants. He has served as a
member of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He has
been an independent non-executive director of LIHL since March 2004
and is currently also an independent non-executive director of each of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (stock code: 738) and Kiu Hung International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited,
stock code: 381), all being listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson

Mr. Nicholson, aged 59, joined the Company in August 2013. He is also a
member of each of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees
of the Company. Mr. Nicholson is a graduate of the University of Kent,
the United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts degree in July 1976, qualified
as a solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong Kong in 1980 and 1982
respectively. Mr. Nicholson is currently an executive director of First Pacific
Company Limited (stock code: 142) and an independent non-executive
director of Pacific Basin Shipping Limited (stock code: 2343), all being
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also the executive chairman of
Forum Energy Plc (listed on the AIM market of the London Stock
Exchange), a commissioner of PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk (listed on
the Indonesia Stock Exchange), and a director of each of Metro Pacific
Investments Corporation, Philex Mining Corporation and Philex Petroleum
Corporation (all of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange).
Forum Energy Plc, PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk, Metro Pacific
Investments Corporation, Philex Mining Corporation and Philex Petroleum
Corporation are subsidiaries or associates of First Pacific Company
Limited.

Previously, Mr. Nicholson was a director of India Capital Growth Fund
Limited (which is listed on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange)
between December 2005 and August 2011 and resigned as an
independent non-executive director of QPL International Holdings Limited
on 7 October 2013.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Kun Kau

Mr. Wong, aged 54, joined the Company in August 2013. He is also a
member of each of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees
of the Company. Mr. Wong received a Bachelor in Social Science degree
from the University of Hong Kong in November 1982. Mr. Wong worked
in the Peregrine Group from 1992 to 1998 and held senior position in
BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited (“BNP Paribas Capital”) from
1998 to 2007. His last positions with BNP Paribas Capital was the head of
investment banking, Asia and head of corporate finance in corporate
finance — management department. Mr. Wong is the founder of and has
been the managing partner of Bull Capital Partners Ltd., which has been
managing a direct investment fund since late 2007. He has experience in
fund management, securities broking and corporate finance. Mr. Wong is
also an independent non-executive director of each of West China
Cement Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong, stock code: 2233) and
Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong
and in the Shanghai Stock Exchange, PRC, stock code: 914 and 600585
respectively) and China Shengmu Organic Milk Limited (a listed company
in Hong Kong, stock code: 1432) and a non-executive director of Sun
King Power Electronics Group Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong,
stock code: 580).
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Senior Management

Mr. Lim Weling, aged 46, is the senior project manager of the project
management department of the Group and is responsible for overseeing
the planning, design, construction and coordination with the project
management, consultants (architects, structure and E&M engineers,
guantity surveyors and interior designers) and contractors, and liaising
with government departments. Mr. Lim was awarded Diplome
D'Architecte Desa (equivalent to a Master degree in Architecture) by Ecole
Spéciale D" Architecture in France in June 1999.

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, aged 43, is the senior project manager of the
project management department of the Group and is responsible for
handling government submissions, planning, design, construction and
coordination with the project management, consultants, contractors and
liaising with the government departments. Mr. Chan was awarded the
degree of Bachelor of Science in Applied Physics by the Hong Kong
Baptist University in December 1996 and the degree of Bachelor of
Engineering in Building Services Engineering by the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in December 2005.

Mr. Poon Ching Pui, aged 48, is the project manager of the project
management department of the Group and is responsible for handling
site-related matters including preparation of project planning, design and
the execution thereof, and coordination with various parties (such as the
local authorities, designers, consultants and contractors). Mr. Poon was
awarded a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Building Services
Engineering by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November 1993, a Master degree of
Business Administration by University of Leicester, the United Kingdom in
July 1997, a Postgraduate Diploma in Construction Project Management
by the University of Hong Kong in August 1998 and a Bachelor degree of
Laws by University of London, the United Kingdom in August 2002.
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Directors’ Report

BR S

The directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are property development and
property investment with the main objective of generating returns
through capital appreciation, including subsequent disposal of the
properties concerned.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 37.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has resolved not to
propose any payment of dividend in respect of the year.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties
and property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

Other than the share option schemes adopted by Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“LIHL") described below, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 December 2014. Save as disclosed below, there has
been no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy
Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Hoi

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson

Mr. Wong Kun Kau

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
and Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each non-executive director and independent
non-executive director is appointed for a term of three years and is
subject to retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Each of Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy and Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy,
being executive director, has a service agreement with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years with effect from 26 August
2013 and thereafter be continuous subject to the terms and
conditions to be agreed between both parties. Such employment may
be terminated by either party by not less than three months’ written
notice or by payment in lieu of such notice in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
There is no specific clause in both service contracts providing for the
amount of compensation in case of early termination of office.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

A (5D

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2014, the directors’ and the chief executive’s
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers are set out below:

(i) Long positions in issued shares of the Company

ESERITHRAERKRD RBBERD 2

e

RIZB-—NFE+-A=+—0 BREKEFRPEK
IV 352 1R FE T fr < B M RLER - XaiR &
EHRRERETESFIZINITETA - AARATE

KEEBE

R AR RR (B Ar )R B -

BEZRITRABRENAR QB SE AT Z 188
B (5 LG EPIDE XV E TR EE) 2B -
ARG REFENRR SRR BT

(i) ALQXFACBITROZERE

Approximate
percentage of

interest in
Number of issued share
ordinary capital of
shares of the Company
Name of director Nature of interest the Company (Note 3)
AR T S BT
RAER 2
AARZEBR BRES T
oy EmME RS EE (PEE3)
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy (“Ms. Amy Chan") Beneficial owner 1,050 0.00025%
PRt e/ NE BEnREBA
Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy (“Ms. Candy Chan") Beneficial owner 500 0.00012%
BRAE/ME EmEAA
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (“Mr. Thomas Lau”) Beneficial owner 3,262,500 0.78%
Bl bt EmEAA
Interest of controlled 3,852,175 0.92%
__corporation (Note 1)
RiEwae g (M)
Interest of controlled 297,861,200 71.07%
__ corporations (Note 2)
EiEH A e (M 2)
Notes: BT
1. Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is wholly-owned 1. £ 2] 558 % 4 2 & 58 2 Dynamic Castle Limited

by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 3,852,175 shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares

in which Dynamic Castle is interested.

2. Of these shares, 249,611,200 shares are held by LIHL, 42,500,000
shares are held by Real Reward Limited (“Real Reward”) and
5,750,000 shares are held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United
Goal”). LIHL is owned as to just over 50% by Mr. Thomas Lau directly
or indirectly through companies which he controls. Real Reward is
jointly owned by United Goal and Go Create Limited (“Go Create”) in
equal shares. United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr.
Thomas Lau through Asia Prime Assets Limited (“Asia Prime”) and as
to 20% by a family trust with Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph (“Mr.
Joseph Lau”) and certain of his family members as eligible
beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be
interested in the same parcels of shares in which LIHL, Real Reward

and United Goal are interested.

3. As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the Company
was HK$41,911,400.00 divided into 419,114,000 shares of HK$0.1

each.
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(i)

(iii)

Long positions in shares of associated corporation

(i) MEBZEROZHAE

Number of
shares in Appropriate
Name of associated associated percentage of
Name of director corporation Nature of interest corporation shareholding
HELE BARE
EEnLA HELERR ERitE BB E BOk
Ms. Amy Chan LIHL Beneficial owner 312,000 0.019%
BRI/ MA ExEAA
Ms. Candy Chan LIHL Beneficial owner 76,000 0.005%
RAOE /A BERBEEA
Mr. Thomas Lau LIHL Beneficial owner 119,928,501 7.36%
Bl EREEA
Interest of controlled 154,764,000 9.50%
corporation (Note 1)
ArEs (M)
Interest of controlled 540,000,000 33.14%
corporations (Note 2)
ReEml R mEs (R 2)
Notes: BT -
1. Dynamic Castle, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 1. Dynamic Castle (3 % 8% 5 4 & 5 BEE #F

154,764,000 shares in LIHL. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in LIHL held by

Dynamic Castle.

154,764, oooﬂquLﬁxfﬁ

ﬁm LlHLmHfo’ﬂ’é/\ °

%&Hﬂﬁ S

2. United Goal holds 540,000,000 shares in LIHL. United Goal is
ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Thomas Lau through Asia Prime
and as to 20% by a family trust of which Mr. Joseph Lau and certain
of his family members are eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of

shares in LIHL in which United Goal is interested.

Long position in the debentures of LS Finance (2017)

Limited (being a wholly-owned subsidiary of LIHL
and an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO) — 5.25% guaranteed bonds due
2017 (“"Guaranteed Bonds"’)

Name of director

EEHE

Nature of interest

2. United Goal # 7% 540,000,000 % LIHL 3% {5 ° United
Goal RBIEE LA R — AL BRI HEABZISH
FEREETREKNENREETEDAIREHES
80% K& 20% ik o BIR(EH LG KM - 2%
B L A 145 BB United Goal BT A B9 LIHL AR
RRADHERS ©

(iii) LS Finance (2017) Limited (LIHLHY 2 &

MEBAR @ BB(EHFRBERLDTE
AATHEBEEIE) ERENEFE —
50 R E—t RPN RIBE S
(TR=EES D)

Principal amount of
guaranteed bonds held

Mr. Wong Kun Kau

BEMESE

Beneficial owner

Save for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352

of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

A (5D

Interests of Substantial Shareholders TERFEER
As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than a director
or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise

RIB-—ME+_A=+—0"  FTIAL(TeHEE
AR ATTRAR) RIEGE S B RDI)E 336
BREMBFELMOALE X mA R FE
RFrEE BN - RAREZ B KR (2(E
FEHEHEPDEXVEAREE) P HEBEATHREZ

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are set out below: ERSA B RS IOT ¢
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the AR REBERGF ZHFE
Company
Approximate
percentage
of interest
in issued
share capital
Name Nature of interest Number of shares of the Company
PN
ERITREAERZ
£ ERME KRoEE BMOEDLE
LIHL Beneficial owner 249,611,200 59.56%
EmEAA
Real Reward Beneficial owner 42,500,000 10.14%
EnEA A
United Goal Beneficial owner 5,750,000 1.37%
EmEA A
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 42,500,000 10.14%
SPEH A R (M)
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporations (Note 1) 48,250,000 11.51%
SPEH A R (M)
Go Create Beneficial owner 5,750,000 1.37%
EmEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 42,500,000 10.14%
SR A AR (MRE2)
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 48,250,000 11.51%
Limited (“CTF Enterprises”) RSN B (FFE2)
AXEEEBRAGT(AXERE]D
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 48,250,000 11.51%
Limited (“CTFHL") SPEHIA EE E (B 2)
AAXE R AR AR ([EAREZER])
Chow Tai Fook Capital Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 48,250,000 11.51%
Limited (“CTFC") Syl N EE R (M EE2)
Cheng Yu Tung Family Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 48,250,000 11.51%
(Holdings) Limited SR A R (MR 2)
("CYTFH")
Cheng Yu Tung Family Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 48,250,000 11.51%

(Holdings II) Limited
("CYTFH-II")

Sy A mEs (MEE2)
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Notes:

1. United Goal, which holds 50% equity interest in Real Reward, is ultimately
owned as to 80% by Mr. Thomas Lau through Asia Prime and as to 20% by
a family trust with Mr. Joseph Lau and certain of his family members as
eligible beneficiaries. Asia Prime is a company wholly owned by Mr. Thomas
Lau. By virtue of the SFO, (i) United Goal and Asia Prime are deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares comprising the 42,500,000 shares in
which Real Reward is interested as beneficial owner as stated in the above
table and (ii) Asia Prime is also deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares comprising the 5,750,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as
beneficial owner as mentioned in the above table.

2. Go Create, which holds 50% equity interest in Real Reward, is wholly owned
by CTF Enterprises. CTF Enterprises is wholly owned by CTFHL, which is held
as to 78.58% by CTFC. CTFC is owned as to 48.98% by CYTFH and as to
46.65% by CYTFH-II. By virtue of the SFO, (i) Go Create, CTF Enterprises,
CTFHL, CTFC, CYTFH and CYTFH-II are deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares comprising the 42,500,000 shares in which Real Reward is
interested as beneficial owner as mentioned in the above table and (ii) CTF
Enterprises, CTFHL, CTFC, CYTFH and CYTFH-Il are deemed to be interested
in the same parcel of shares comprising the 5,750,000 shares in which Go
Create is interested as beneficial owner as mentioned in the above table.

3. Mr. Thomas Lau is a director of LIHL, Real Reward and United Goal and the
sole director of Asia Prime.

Save for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Schemes of LIHL

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

LIHL adopted a share option scheme (“2004 Share Option Scheme”)
for a period of 10 years commencing 27 March 2004. Under the 2004
Share Option Scheme, LIHL may grant options to (i) any full-time
employee of LIHL or of any subsidiary; (ii) directors (including non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of LIHL
or any subsidiary; (ii) advisors and consultants to LIHL or to any
subsidiary in the areas of technical, financial, legal or corporate
managerial who, at the sole determination of the board of directors
of LIHL (“LIHL Board"), have contributed to LIHL and/or any subsidiary
(the assessment criteria of which are (a) contributions to the
development and performance of LIHL and/or subsidiary; (b) quality of
work performed for LIHL and/or any subsidiary; (c) initiative and
commitment in performing his/her duties; and (d) length of service or
contribution to LIHL and/or any subsidiary).

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2004 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme
of LIHL is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of LIHL in issue
as at the date of the commencement of dealings in the shares on the
Stock Exchange, being 144,000,000 shares of HK$0.005 each after
the share subdivision in 2007. Since termination of the 2004 Share
Option Scheme had been conditionally confirmed and approved in an
extraordinary general meeting of LIHL held on 3 March 2009, no
further options will be offered under the 2004 Share Option Scheme,
but all options granted prior to such termination shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2004 Share Option
Scheme.

%576 Real Reward 50% ## = ) United Goal £ 2118855 % 4
R—EaERIHEABRZEREREETREKED
R IG5 9 Bl R4 A 80% (& B Asia Prime i A ) K&
20% #z5 © Asia Prime B2|EB A2 EHEB NG
RIBCEH R EIEEH]) » (i) United Goal & Asia Prime #7148,
B AE ERFT#HReal Reward A BB HE A B A W
42,500,000 &A% 15 HIAERIME &+ K (iDAsia Prime JREAR /&
WA £ &R FTH United Goal B ¥ A /95,750,000 [% %15
Z ME R o

2. #575 Real Reward 50% # %5 Go Create FREAIRBHHESE
BEA  MAXNBEERBANEERE2ERS - CTFCHE
B K@ 78.58% 4 a5 M CTFC % Bl B CYTFH &
CYTFH-II35 75 48.98% [ 46.65% 125 ° RIB(EH LI E
BBl ) () GoCreate~ AR ZE B AREEZERK:
CTFC ~ CYTFH R CYTFH-Il 3% 18 A& # A £ & F7 #Real
Reward & 25 # & 89 42,500,000 B A& 19 2 R R (i)
BAAREEE - BAREER - CTFC » CYTFH K CYTFH-II 4%
18 AEEE ERFTH Go Create Bz A 195,750,000 %A%
9z R o

3. 25838 4 4 A LIHL - Real Reward & United Goal 2 EE &
Asia Prime 2 E—E 5 ©

B EatggE LS R F-MF+ - A=+—H 1R
(7 LB RG))SE 336 (R EMEF 2 &M
OB BEEE A TEARNR AR RO R ARRE R
BAEMEDIORE -

LIHL 2 BE B R 5t &l
—EENFEERESE

LHLE R —EENE=A-++tARAH 52
BRETE (TN FERESE ) - RE=-F
T FRE AR AERT B - LIHL ] 3% T B AR 4 5 ()LIHL 2k (T
B AR 2 EMZ2EBEE  (HUHLSERKHTB AR
CEE(RHEFNTESLRBIUIFNTESE) (i) &
UHLEEE ((UHLEEE ) 20T  HUHLE 5
EE B R REBEE 2 LHLS TR B A RN T
2K RSO EE R T ANER S ERER
(FHE2R| A (a) ¥ UHL &/ s (T a1 BB A Rl BE I 3
B2EE D)ABUHLE,SERME AR TIE2E
2 (QFBITERE 2 T8 MAEM - K& (d)ALHL
5/ SR B A R RIS ER 2 FH) -

BE T FERERT S s LIHLE R K A 5T 8] /]
B FBIRAERT S M EE - TEABB LIHL AR
BB EE 2 BB BITRMD10% IR -F
T EtHEFRMOHDFMREESRMEMENSE T 2
144,000,000 % %15 - BRALUHLE&AR S NF =
AZ A8 Z2BRRFNAD EEIREERIIER

—ETNFERES - BINBRIESZTERIE
ZETFERENEREELD  EREBR LR
RIBE-ZZTNFERETEMAR T2 BIREGE
BBERKLAIITE -
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The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of LIHL in issue, without
prior approval from LIHL's shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders, independent non-executive directors, or any
of their respective associates (including a trustee of a discretionary
trust of which they or any of their family interests are discretionary
objects) in excess of 0.1% of LIHL's share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be also approved by LIHL's
shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the
offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of
offer), upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be exercised
at any time during a period commencing on or after the date on
which the option is accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring
on a date to be notified by the LIHL Board to each grantee which shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of LIHL, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of LIHL's shares on the date of grant, (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of LIHL's
share.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (“2009 Share Option
Scheme") was approved by the shareholders of LIHL in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2009 for a period of
10 years commencing from 3 March 2009 as incentive or reward for
the contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of the LIHL
Group and to provide to the LIHL Group with a more flexible means
to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, LIHL may grant options to (a)
any full-time or part-time employee of LIHL and/or any subsidiary; (b)
any director (including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive director) of LIHL and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any
consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise and whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier, service
provider, agent, customer and business partner of LIHL and/or any
subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the LIHL Board, have
contributed or will contribute to LIHL and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
2009 Share Option Scheme. However, the LIHL Board may offer to
grant any options subject to such terms and conditions in relation to
the minimum period of the options to be held and/or the performance
targets to be achieved before such Options can be exercised and/or
any other terms as the LIHL Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of LIHL must not, in aggregate,
exceed 166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of LIHL as at 3 March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share
Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of LIHL. The LIHL
Board may seek approval by shareholders in general meeting to renew
such limit provided that it must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of LIHL at the date of approval of the renewed limit. The
maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme must
not exceed such number of shares as shall represent 30% of the
issued share capital of LIHL from time to time.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of LIHL or any
of their respective associates, and the proposed grant of options will
result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued share capital of
LIHL on the date of offer and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, such grant of options must be subject to the approval
of the shareholders taken on a poll at general meeting. The connected
person involved in such proposed grant of options and all other
connected persons of LIHL must abstain from voting in such general
meeting (except that any connected person may vote against the
proposed grant provided that his intention to do so has been stated in
the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified in the
offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the date of
offer), upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the offer. Options
may be exercised at any time during a period to be notified by the
LIHL Board to each grantee which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of the offer. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of LIHL, and will be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of LIHL's shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of LIHL's share.

T E AT e R IE — ST N F BT E & LHLA (T
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Details of Options Granted by LIHL

Details of the movement in the share options granted by LIHL are as

LIHL IR T B IRE 2 5518

FA - HUHLRHBERREESHFBD T

follows:
Number of share options
BREZE

Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at Subscription
1 January during during during during 31 December price per
Date of grant 2014 theyear theyear theyear the year 2014  Option period share

Hog-mE et

—-B—-H t+t=ZA=t+-H
BFAH HATE FRARF FROE FRARR  FAEH HATE  BRESR BRABE

Director

Bz

Ms. Candy Chan 02/02/2009 66,000 - (66,000) - - - 07/02/2010 - HK$6.40

RAL/NE 26/03/2014 6.40/7T

(Notes 2)
(FzE2)
Mr. Thomas Lau 31/08/2007 17,020,000 - - (17,020,000) - - 01/10/2008 - HK$18.50
Bl gyt 26/03/2014 18.50/8 7T
(Note 1)
(P5E1)

Total 17,086,000 - (68,000) (17,020,000) - -

@5t

Notes: Mz -

1. The options, granted by LIHL on 31 August 2007, are exercisable from 1 1. ZER_ZTLFN\A=ZT—HALHLE T ZERETR
October 2008 to 26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in the following —ZEE)N\F+A—BEZ—NF=A=-t+"BHB(E
manner: FEEEMB) BT HRITE :

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme (i) B-ZTN\F+A-BRKRZHZERETSIR

commencing 1 October 2008;

(ii) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 1 October 2009; and

(i)  upto 100% of the total number of options granted under the

Scheme commencing 1 October 2010.

2. On 3 March 2009, the outstanding options previously granted by LIHL to 2.
employees of the LIHL Group on 31 August 2007 (which entitled such
employees to subscribe for an aggregate of 20,400,000 shares) were
cancelled and replaced by new options granted by LIHL entitling them to
subscribe for the same number of shares at an exercise price of HK$6.40 per
share (the “2009 Employee Options”). The 2009 Employee Options are
exercisable from 7 February 2010 to 26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in

the following manner:

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 7 February 2010;

(ii) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 7 February 2011; and

(i) upto 100% of the total number of options granted under the

Scheme commencing 7 February 2012.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
Other than as disclosed under the section “Details of Options Granted
by LIHL", at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transaction”, no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Continuing Connected Transaction

LIHL is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being a
controlling shareholder of the Company, the members of the LIHL
Group (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries, “Remaining LIHL
Group”) mentioned below are thus regarded as associates of LIHL and
so a connected person of the Company.

The following transaction of the Group constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transaction (“Continuing Connected
Transaction”) for the Company during the year under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (”Listing
Rules”).

Services Framework Agreement

On 26 August 2013, the Company entered into a services framework
agreement (”Services Framework Agreement”) with LIHL which took
effect upon the listing of shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on 12 September 2013 up to and including 31 December
2015. This agreement regulates, inter alia, all future transactions
("Transactions”) between members of the Group and member(s) of
the Remaining LIHL Group arising from provision by the Group of
non-exclusive property project related services in respect of property
development, including but without limitation feasibility study, design,
project co-ordination and supervision, for the relevant properties
owned by or leased to the Remaining LIHL Group and situated in the
PRC and Hong Kong (“Services”). The Services do not cover the
provision of routine property management services for existing
properties of the Remaining LIHL Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of HK$7 million
service fee and other was received from LIHL under the Services
Framework Agreement.
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The Continuing Connected Transaction above has been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2014 the Continuing
Connected Transaction has been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Notice 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transaction under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected Transaction in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in notes 23 and 31
to the consolidated financial statements, transactions of project
management as stated in note 23 and those shown in notes 31(a)(i),
31(a)(vi) and 31(a)(vii) (Project management income received) were
continuing connected transactions subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval; transactions shown in notes
31(a)(i), 31(a)iii), 31(a)iv), 31(a)\v), 31(a)(vii) (rental expense paid) and
31(a)(viii) are continuing connected transactions exempt from
reporting, annual review announcement and independent
shareholder’s approval requirement. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.

Deed of Non-competition

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company
and LIHL on 26 August 2013 (“Non-compete Deed”). The
independent board committee (“Committee”) comprising the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who do not
have any role in the Remaining LIHL Group was formed to review and
advise any matter in connection with the Non-compete Deed.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, two opportunities had
been notified to the Company from LIHL (“Opportunities”) by way of
formal letters and appropriate times were given to consider the
Opportunities.

The Committee meeting was held in each occasion to consider the
Opportunities, the Committee considered in both cases, it is not in
the interest of the Company and the shareholders of the Company as
a whole to pursue the Opportunities at that moment. As such, both
Opportunities were declined.
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Pursuant to the Non-compete Deed, the Company has received an
annual confirmation from LIHL that LIHL complied with the terms of
the Non-compete Deed for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
LIHL has not entered into any transactions with an intention to
circumvent the terms of the Non-compete Deed for the year ended

31 December 2014. The Committee had conducted an annual review
in relation to the LIHL's compliance with the terms of the Non-
compete Deed and concluded that LIHL had complied with such terms
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Remuneration Policy
The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments package of the directors and senior management of
the Company are reviewed and concluded by the remuneration
committee, with consideration to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

LIHL, the holding company of the Company has adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive to directors and eligible employees of
the Company, details of the scheme is set out under the section
headed “Share Option Schemes of LIHL" above.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

There were no competing business of which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Employees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total 65 employees,
mostly based in Mainland China. Staff costs (excluding directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$16.3 million (2013: HK$8.7 million). The Group
ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line
with market trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group's salary and
bonus system.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

A (5D

Major Suppliers

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
55.9% of the Group’s purchase. The largest supplier of the Group
accounted for 28.4% of the Group’s purchase.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or
those shareholders so far as is known to the directors having more
than 5% interest in the share capital of the Company, has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers during the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by public as of the date of this report.

Charitable Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other donations
(2013: HK$1 million).

Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution will
be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Chor Ling, Amy
Executive Director

16 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
A R

Deloitte.
=2)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LIFESTYLE PROPERTIES DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle
Properties Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 98,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Inde%@ndent Audltor s Report (continued)
B0 R (A

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Aoy 10 2 B At % 1 WAL 28 3%

for the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —ZT—MNE+—-f=+—HItFE

2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FHET
Turnover EERE 7 - 4,490
Operating expenses X (9,954) (15,627)
Other income, gains and losses HAUg A - W M EE 8 20,216 44,002
Staff costs BIHA 11 (20,044) (10,955)
Depreciation and amortisation e (811) (1,981)
Investment properties wEWE
— realised gain on disposal of investment — HEREMEER W
properties - 4
— realised gain on disposal of an investment — HE—RREMFEIER
property holding subsidiary M A R BR s 27 - 56,916
— unrealised fair value changes — REBBREATEES 15 (3,053) 6,487
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair BAFESAERZSZ
value through profit or loss CRIEEMN AT EES - (737)
Other expenses HAnp - (18,291)
Finance costs BLE KA 9 - (464)
(Loss) profit before taxation AT (E18) m (13,646) 63,844
Taxation 18 10 (232) (5,187)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners KRR AHEA A
of the Company FEAE A (B18) & T 11 (13,878) 58,657
Other comprehensive (expense) income PA/NSIE S DN
attributable to owners of the Company: HEm2mE(F)BA -
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit TEENGEEERN
or loss: |A -
Exchange differences arising on translation Mt EBRERZVEE
of functional currency to presentation FrEEZER =R
currency (50,314) 28,557
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the RARERABGFAZE
year attributable to owners of the Company (A WA B (64,192) 87,214
(Loss) earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) Tk (E18) & F
— ZEARGEA) 14 (3.31) 38.14
MRS RARA Y 2R 37



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A o B B AR DL A

at 31 December 2014 RA=—Z—NE+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-IF T —=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BsE FERT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEMZE 15 700,403 716,753
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB M 16 330 842
Properties under development BRAYE 17 97,990 43,919
Prepaid lease payments ENES 18 668,448 705,799
1,467,171 1,467,313
Current assets MBNEE
Other receivables H th FE U TRIR 19 1,887 351,142
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries S ES VNG B 23 1,124 675
Financial assets at fair value through BRATER AER
profit or loss ZEMEE 20 29,075 29,075
Fixed deposits JEHATF K 21 64,742 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFRIRE 21 501,391 285,749
598,219 666,641
Current liabilities mENBE
Other payables and accrued charges H b e FRIB R BT B R 22 7,492 7,140
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FENM—ERREMBARZE 23 - 329
Taxation payable FERIBIIR 200,052 199,806
207,544 207,275
Net current assets MEVEEFE 390,675 459,366
Total assets less current liabilities BwEERTBARE 1,857,846 1,926,679
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BRI AR 24 165,231 169,872
Net assets FRE 1,692,615 1,756,807
Capital and reserves BN
Share capital N 25 41,911 41,911
Reserves wEE 1,650,704 1,714,896
Total equity e 1,692,615 1,756,807
The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 98 were EINERELECHBRREETGRN _ZE—1F=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 RERBHUEREEEM TR TINEEREREE
March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:
Chan Chor Ling, Amy BR#¥% Chan Siu Chun, Candy B2 ¥
Executive Director $7TE % Executive Director $7TE %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2014 &= —ZT—MNE+—-f=+—HItFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KDREEAELER
Asset
Share Share Capital revaluation  Exchange  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BEEf
RE  ROEE  ERREE wE  EXRE  RERN FoHY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FEr FHT FHT FiEn FHT
(note a) (note b)
(MizEa) (BiEED)

At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%—-f—-H - - 20,143 100,609 67,826 286,598 475,176

Profit for the year ERa - - - - - 58,657 58,657

Other comprehensive income for the year & R E{th 2 EIIA - - - - 28,557 - 28,557

Total comprehensive income for the year 2 EUA 25 - - - - 28,557 58,657 87,214

Reorganisation (note 25) EA(FiFE25) 9 1,025732 - - - 1,025,741

Capitalisation issue (note 25(c)) BRI BT (M 25(0) 33,211 (33,211) - - - - -

Issue of shares of the Company upon EyNGE e G

initial public offering (notes 25(c) & (e)) (&t 25(d) K (e) 8,691 163,398 - - - - 172,089
Expenses incurred in connection with BOROMEEZZH

issue of shares - (4,641) - - - - (4,641)
Redlassification of exchange differences  HE—FHMBRARBEHRHE

upon disposal of a subsidiary R ERE(RME27)

(see note 27) - - - - (42,380) 42,380 -
Redlassification of asset revaluation HE-MMBRARERDBEE

reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary BiEHE(RNE27)

(see note 27) - - - (100,609) - 100,609 -
Deemed contribution from LIHL RELHLEE - - 1,228 - - - 1,228
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+ZA=1T—H 4191 1,151,278 21,371 - 54,003 488,244 1,756,807
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (13,878) (13,878)
Other comprehensive expense for the year £REfZ2ERER - - - (50,314) - (50,314)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRZ2EH L E5 - - - - (50,314) (13,878) (64,192)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+ZA=1—H 4191 1,151,278 21,371 - 3,689 474366 1,692,615
Notes: B &E -

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain directors’ and key (a) BE-T—=F+-_A=+—HLEE ETEERTET
managements’ remuneration and staff costs (including share option awards in BEMNE REEBEHEMNE A (RIS 26 Fri 5
note 26) of the corporate function (the “‘Remuneration”) amounting to e sgmEy) (T84 1) A1,228,0008 T (ZZ—PMN4E : #) - iy
HK$1,228,000 (2014 nil) was borne by Lifestyle International Holdings Limited FiEEEEBAR AT ([LUHL)) B - I EE 5 T A £ E i
("LIHL") and not recharged to the subsidiaries of the Group. The amounts were BAT c ZEMEHAERTY  BRARIELUHLEE 5
expensed by the Group and recognised as deemed contribution from LIHL and ANERGFEE - AEEMBEANES D2 ZEMALT2EEAEE
credited to capital reserve. The Remuneration recognised by the Group was LB RIS R hET o
estimated by reference to the involvement of the respective personnel in the
operation of the Group.

(b) The asset revaluation reserve represented the transfer of certain property, plant (b) BESHRHEREIAESERRENEERETVE  BEESR

and equipment and prepaid lease payments of the Group to investment properties.
Upon the transfer to investment properties, the respective property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments were revalued at fair value with the
surplus on revaluation after setting off associated deferred tax credited to asset
revaluation reserve. The asset revaluation reserve had been transferred directly to
retained profits when the corresponding property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments had been disposed of during the year ended 31 December
2013.

BNEMNES - BEEREAMEOEANE - BE REREM
BNESRAFEER EfHBHKEHEARETHERTA
BEEMREE BE-_Z—=F+t-_A=t—HILFE &
AEBCDEEAEYE HELAREERENES  BEER
REEESEEREAER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBERER

for the year ended 31 December 2014 H#E —Z—NFE+_-_A=+—HItFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
(Loss) profit before taxation AT (EE) w=H (13,646) 63,844
Adjustments for: BYER AT % -
The Remuneration (deemed contribution from LIHL) & GR{ELIHLTE) - 1,228
Interest income FLE U A (13,100) (3,125)
Imputed interest income HEF BUA (1,622) (12,976)
Unrealised exchange gain KEIEE H U (2,239) (15,666)
Interest expenses FEXZH - 464
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEETE 811 1,981
Fair value changes on investment properties REMENTFEE
— realised gain — BB - (4)
— unrealised loss (gain) — R EE () 3,053 (6,487)
Realised gain on disposal of an investment property — H& — 3% & W%
holding subsidiary UapEE NS bb g - (56,916)
Expenses incurred in relation to disposal of EEALE—THMBAR
a subsidiary FrEEZEH 1,683 -
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss CREENATEE - 737
Operating cash flows before movements in working &E&E &S FLELNERE
capital (25,060) (26,920)
Additions to properties under development INBIERYE (37,206) (37,082)
Increase in other receivables Eo b U SR IEE N (583) (3,226)
Increase in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEULIR) 2 M B~ &) R IEE hn (529) (675)
(Decrease) increase in amount due to a fellow B — R R XM B A A kI8
subsidiary ORtA>) 180 (317) 329
Decrease in other payables and accrued charges Em @I sRERE 'R (1,305) (4,968)
Cash used in operations KeXBARS (65,000) (72,542)
Interest received BEF B 12,942 3,020
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEREEBNEH 18 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBRE (4) (23)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB REMEH - (18,896)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBAAREER (52,044) (88,441)
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2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREES
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — B A RS RIA 27 342,526 167,718
Withdrawal of fixed deposits REUE BN 6,230 -
Placement of fixed deposits BFAEHER (70,972) -
Additions to investment properties NBIREWE (3,350) (7,352)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BB R&HE (315) -
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEMSHIEA - 864
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFTBHFBREFHE 274,119 161,230
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE

Proceeds on issue of shares BT 2 TS 5R78 - 172,089
Loan from fellow subsidiaries BERANEA féf%’»( - 74,929
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries BERZRHBR - (122,637)

Expenses incurred in connection with the issue ﬁ@@?ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iz
of shares B - (4,641)
Interest expenses paid ERMEZH - (464)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETHAEREFE - 119,276
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  BE&RBESZSEYEINFE 222,075 192,065

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FHEERRSEEY
OF THE YEAR 285,749 91,030
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREBE) L (6,433) 2,654

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREASRASEEY
END OF THE YEAR 501,391 285,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 1 S 2 AR B

for the year ended 31 December 2014 # &= —ZT—MWE+ - =+—HItFE
1.

1.

42

General and Basis of Presentation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Company is a public listed company incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company'’s immediate holding company is Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“LIHL"), a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. At 31 December 2013 and prior
to 22 December 2014, the Company’s ultimate holding
company was Real Reward Limited (“Real Reward”), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. As a result of completion of
Sale and Purchase Agreements (as defined in the composite
offer document of LIHL dated 9 January 2015) in respect of the
sales of LIHL's shares by Real Reward on 22 December 2014,
Real Reward is no longer the Company’s ultimate holding
company. The new ultimate holding company is Asia Prime
Assets Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Thomas
Lau, who is also the Non-executive Director of the Company.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in property development and property
investment.

In preparation of the listing of the shares of the Company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), the
companies comprising the Group underwent a group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure
of the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are more fully
explained under section headed “Reorganisation” in the
prospectus dated 2 September 2013 issued by the Company
(the “Prospectus”). As a result of the Reorganisation, the
Company became the holding company of the companies
comprising the Group on 14 August 2013.

The companies now comprising the Group were under common
control of a controlling party, LIHL, prior to and after the
Reorganisation and therefore is regarded as a continuing entity.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if
the Company has been the holding company of the companies
comprising the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2013. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash
flows which include the results and cash flows of the companies
now comprising the Group have been prepared by applying the
principles of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") as if the current group structure
upon completion of the Reorganisation has been in existence
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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General and Basis of Presentation of Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 12 September 2013.

The functional currency of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB") while the consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which the management of the Group considered is
more beneficial for the users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new interpretation, amendments to HKFRSs and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the
HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-INT 21

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A T B R M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT-—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after

Financial Instruments: Hedge
accounting and impairment®
Regulatory deferral accounts'

Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations*

Disclosure initiative'

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation*

Agriculture: Bearer plants*

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Equity method in separate
financial statements*

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception’

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture*
Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle?

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle*

1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with

earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier

application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with

earlier application permitted.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

6 The Group has early applied HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 and revised

in October 2010 regarding classification and measurement of financial

assets and disclosure requirements. The Group has not yet early applied a

revised version of HKFRS 9 issued in September 2014 which deals with

classification and measurement, general hedge accounting and impairment

which is mandatory effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 was amended in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. A revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

Certain financial assets held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets should be measured
at FVTOCI (unless designated at fair value through profit
and loss (“FVTPL") to eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement mismatch). This applies to assets passing
the contractual cash flow characteristics assessment
(which is the same test used to determine whether
financial assets are measured at amortised cost). Interest
revenue, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment gains and losses shall be recognised in profit
or loss with all other gains or losses (i.e. the difference
between those items and the total change in fair value)
being recognised in other comprehensive income. Any
cumulative gain or loss recorded in other comprehensive
income would be reclassified to profit and loss on
derecognition, or potentially earlier if the asset is
reclassified because of a change in business model.
Interest income and impairment gains and losses would
be recognised and measured in the same manner as for
assets measured at amortised cost such that the amounts
in other comprehensive income represents the difference
between the amortised cost value and fair value. This
results in the same information in profit or loss as if the
asset was measured at amortised cost, yet the
consolidated statement of financial position would reflect
the instrument'’s fair value.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

2.

FE R R] RAERT BB | E
ZR (BBYBHREED) (&)

ERMBREENEIR(EMTA]
R-T—=FEIIZ2BBUHEREERNFNWR -
BR-BREPEHRIEENHRE - R_F
—FERMBBBIBIREERFIFNLEFT
AR E 2 INA (a) 1 75 & B BB (B 5 E K (b) 75
RETHEEBTASIABZBRAFERA
Ht2mEKaE | 528N SoBMFERTE
TR BRERT -

\{/

BB BREENEISFHEEMREHAMT ¢

o —[EWEBERAAEAENE THBEE
ENARBREANESREENEE
EH - EBERAFEFAEBEERESE
A (BRIEETNRAFEFABZE AT
Bt AlBsE ] DUBKR SR L BZ AR 2T
ITH) - EEAREERBARRERE
HHTEESARETSREELSE N
RE SR A ETEAEIR) - FIB WA - (B
RSB R E B R R s
Hibpra U zsskiBsk (BN ABLLTE B FIQF
BEEBEBE I ENER) BRET A M
EHEMRER - T AEMAKERRA
ZEHNFERBABET S EEERR
IEHER - ke R AR EE N E
EREFHEZEE - FIERANMBIE
18285 18 A R A5 B9 77 20 A B S AR AN W 2R
ATE NESEEMEARENSER
REBERABEEATEZ HHELE -
EEYRNEZEERBEXANTE 2
BAHERRER  MEAHBERIEER
MTAMAFE -

o HMBEEMREMS  BEBGE
Al 395 MR EAEEBEENE
HHRR - BEVBRELERFEIRMAE
REMEEBREAGE - BHEEES
BERAZZEENEAERBENEER
EBEEZEEEERNEREH AR
VAR R B PRI FER A RE E AR ey E ) o
ME2 BABRBEGEESEMHAARE
RIEEERE -

I AERRAMRAE R —DUFEHR 45



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A T B R M ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NF+-A=1+—ALFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of the application of HKFRS
9 and it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principles of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

4(6 Lifestyle Properties Development Limited Annual Report 2014
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customers. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with special
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of the application of HKFRS
15 and it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

The directors of the Company anticipate the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss on the statement of financial position of the
Company.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs including land costs,
construction costs, professional fees and other direct
development expenditure that are directly attributable to the
construction or acquisition of the property are capitalised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A T B R M ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NF+-A=1+—ALFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “'prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entities
denominated in RMB are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

ETERETHE (@)
BiIE
A 15 RO A B R BB BB 2 40 -

B ENRIBRAFEERVEMNGTE - ER
79t ) 1B 18 LAt R [ B R ER A5 = P 4 A5 I 2
HE - T REBARREIANRIEAL
A B ER & B R E b 2 E U R TR AT
BE - AEEZAMNANERMEREAEE
EHAB BB HEFTE -

BLERBRGEVBRRZEENBENRE
ERERRVOE N TAARRE Z BT
ERER - BERARBEATIMAERRNE
By A= BANERR - fin AT B /2 50 B AR i ) AR 3E
HATBAMAIRERZRE - WRESmE
AHRE R ZRERECHAEE - WER =
AT ERRDUEN M T EG AN 2
X5 (FEBAF) NEMEER BBV THE
RMEIE AT ERRLFREEHBEERE
f& e

EETIA R B ERIR A E QR B 2 R
R ERRER - A B ARSI T E R
NERZBRA A TSN A R RE D Ak
S o AIRA AT BE A B S SR TR A AT 3 A E A
EZRNEABHEN A RRERELNBERT -
HERRAZEFREGMN AN G E AT
EERERERIBEE °

BEREFMAEENRHENSERAEE AR
A WA KA GEH B HFE ER T A AT U Bl 2
BBk D B ER AR AREE

EEFBEERABREANBEABUER
BEZHREANRR (AR 2RNEEEE
BEEIAR LD EEARE(RBOE))FTE -
BEEHBEEREE ZFERRAEENZH
HEE AR REEEERABREELZ
HTAMBBER -

AERERBRBEIELHAEEER  UQF
BELAENRENE 2 ERENREEEH
E2EUE - ERRIERAIRRID  HIKEY)
XAMEANETR AN RBREMIEEBIEE
HEBREMERBEMBRED BN
ERAKE - AERRRBIES -

I AERRAMRAE R —DUFEHR 53



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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for the year ended 31 December 2014
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (""FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss
(except for debt investments that are designated as at FVTPL on
initial recognition):

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
"other income, gains and losses” line item.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless
the Group designates an investment that is not held for trading
as at FVTOCI on initial recognition. The Group has not
designated any investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria
(see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments
that meet the amortised cost criteria but are designated as at
FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. A debt instrument may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVTPL
when the business model is changed such that the amortised
cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt
instruments that are designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the “other income,
gains and losses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, including other payables and amount due to

a fellow subsidiary, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to staff members of group entities by
the shareholder (i.e. LIHL), the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options at the
grant date. The services received is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
capital reserve as deemed contribution from the shareholder.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

4.  Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources 4.
of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the management of the Group is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the management of the
Group has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that none of the
Group's investment properties are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time rather
than through sales. Therefore, the directors of the Company
have determined that the “sales” presumption that the carrying
amounts of the investment properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale is not rebutted. The Group has
recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties situated in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") as those properties are subject to land appreciation
taxes and enterprise income taxes upon disposal as appropriate.
No deferred tax has been recognised on changes in fair value of
investment properties situated in Hong Kong as it is not
expected to have tax consequence upon disposal of these
properties. The deferred tax liabilities in respect of land
appreciation taxes in the PRC are determined based on
valuations of the investment properties performed by
independent professional valuers and on the assumption that
the values are the actual proceeds to be received from the sale
of these properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Income taxes

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of approximately HK$55,619,000
(2013:HK$54,949,000), due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which the
revised estimate takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A T B R M ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014
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4.  Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources 4.
of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As described in note 20, the Group has investment in an
unlisted equity investment (representing the 10% equity interest
in an entity in the PRC, Shenyang Jiajian Property Development
Limited (“Shenyang Jiajian”)) with carrying amount of
HK$29,075,000 (2013: HK$29,075,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014. The
management estimated its fair value taking into account
primarily the fair value of underlying property held by the
investee after adjusting for lack of marketability of the equity
investment. Favourable or unfavourable change to the
estimation could affect the fair value of the investment
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, there is no significant change in
the fair value of the Group’s unlisted equity investment during
the year.

Investment properties situated in the PRC

As described in note 15, investment properties that are situated
in the PRC are stated at fair value at 31 December 2014 which
are determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to a valuation performed by an independent professional valuer
carried out at 30 November 2014 and recent property market
data of similar properties in the relevant locations. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the fair value of these
properties at 31 December 2014 approximates the fair value at
30 November 2014. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties situated in Hong Kong and the PRC at 30 November
2014 was arrived at based on the direct comparison approach
assuming sale of each of the property interests in their existing
state and making references to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant markets. The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties situated in the PRC at 31 December 2013
were determined based on the income method — direct
capitalisation approach by capitalising future rental income
derived from the property interest at an appropriate market
yield for the remaining term of the land use rights of the
properties. The directors of the Company considered that the
change in valuation technique with respect to those properties
in the PRC at 31 December 2014 is appropriate as the valuation
technique used in the current year is based on market price of
similar properties and locations, and shall equally reflect the
property value as compare to income approach used in the prior
year which was based on adjusted market rentals and
capitalisation rate. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount
of those properties are of approximately HK$661,003,000
(2013: HK$678,353,000). In relying on the valuation reports of
the independent professional valuers, the management has
exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the market conditions prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Any changes in the market
conditions will affect the fair value of the investment properties
of the Group.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
share premium, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management of the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends and new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt.

Financial Instruments

B ER
AEEEREAR  ARRAEEETE
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BOEREREDR - RET 1 AEEZ
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Categories of financial instruments SMIAER
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Financial assets EREE
FVTPL ZAFES AR 29,075 29,075
Financial assets measured at amortised cost RN EZ S RIEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BER S RIBELZEY) 567,646 636,603
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost BEHEKAFTECCREE 1,077 884

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include bank balances
and cash, fixed deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, other
receivables, other payables and amounts due from (to) fellow
subsidiaries. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries is RMB in which most of their transactions are
denominated. The Group does not have significant foreign
currency transactions during the year which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. However, the Group has certain foreign
currency denominated bank balances at the end of the
reporting period and details of which are disclosed in respective
notes.

The Group mainly exposed to currency risk of United States
dollars (“US$") and HKS$. The carrying amount of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

TE T A (&)
SHEAREERERBEKM)

SMNE LB
ARARETEMBRARZIRER /AR
W RENABIRXZANREEL - FR -
ZJKE@]IE TRSAREEmYIMNER LA E
RINEZ S - BEMI - BEXESWMPLEE
H 'ﬁ‘ilﬁ?;%?ﬁl\ﬁ%uﬂﬁiﬁﬂ\ 7 AR
BRBEREMEE -

AEFIEEHETNETHEEERR - ©
ERPEERD  REEUIINEHESEEER
HEWLT :

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 72,908 89,121

us$ e 44,668 82,658

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
possible appreciation or depreciation in RMB against US$ and
HK$. The Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policy, the management will continuously monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging its foreign
currency exposure should the need arise. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjust their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in the foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity rate used is the rate when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates.

The analysis illustrates the impact of RMB appreciates 5%
against the relevant foreign currencies. A negative number
indicates an increase in post-tax loss/a decrease in post-tax
profit for the year.

TRFMAEEH AR HLEXTRBTARET
B2 E5% WBURE - AEE B F I EIME
HHREBR - BEEERSREERIMNERR
RanpEEEREhIMNERR - BURE DT
EEREMINEHEERIAER - AN RBEE
HiZ5% fE RS EFEBHRE - PrAGURELL X
RAET2ERABRNEZ i&ﬁl\lﬁﬂ 8 2 L
TYEREHIER 2 AR REE B RFIA

B A RS 5 BRI T B 5% B 8
TR B PO R B R L, BT
b o

2014 2013
—2-mE | —ZT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
HK$ AT (3.645) (4,456)
uss$ e (2,233) (4,133)

There would be an equal and opposite impact on post-tax (loss)
profit for the year if RMB depreciates 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of foreign exchange risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the Group's fixed-rate short-term fixed deposits. The
management of the Group consider that the Group’s exposure
to these fixed-rate short-term fixed deposits to interest rate risk
is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end
of each reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the management of the Group consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. At 31 December 2013, the Group
had concentration of credit risk with respect to consideration
receivable for disposal of a subsidiary in prior year (details are
disclosed in note 19). The directors of the Company considered
that the credit risk was not significant, in light of the fact that
the final payment receivable (also see notes 19 and 27) had
already been settled in January 2014. The Group also has
concentration risk by geographic location in relation to its debts
which are derived from its operation in the PRC.

The Group's credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Price risk

The financial assets at FVTPL represent an unlisted equity
investment in the PRC and details of which are set out in note
20. The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period which is directly linked
to the price risk of the underlying property (the major underlying
asset of the investee).
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes estimated
interest payment based on interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

TE T A (&)
SHEAREERERBEKM)

REE S E R

REBRBECRARE  AEBEERERERE
BEARENENAREXBESHERZRE
FEeEHEY  WHERERENBDTE

TRAVAEEITESRBENRGBRE OB
R TRIZBRAKE A EWHEBSFERZZFH
HNERMBEZRBRRSRERT - TRH
FIER2WMAEE B 2 FRGFE 2 A FEN

2
oA °

REBE T KRS ERK

Repayable
Weighted on demand
average or less than Total
effective 3 months undiscounted Total
interest rate  AEREF~  cash flows carrying
mEFEYE R=EAR #IERLIR amount
ERRA=E BE HERE BRmEAE
% HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—WFE+=A
=t+—H
Non-derivative financial kTESRER
liabilities
Other payables HE e RIE - 1,077 1,077 1,077
At 31 December 2013 R=-E—=%H+=A8
=+—H
Non-derivative financial ETEESRMER
liabilities
Other payables E M E OB - 555 555 555
Amounts due to fellow FEftR ZMI B AR
subsidiaries F/er] - 329 329 329
884 884 884
Fair value AE¥{E

Financial assets at FVTPL is determined by reference to the fair
value of net assets of the investee (mainly comprised a property)
after adjusting for lack of marketability of the investment.

Other than the financial assets at FVTPL, the fair value of other
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting
period.

64 Lifestyle Properties Development Limited Annual Report 2014

BAFEF A BERZ SREESEWREF
BE(XZZRE-AYRE ARERZTHRE
M FARBR R FEEE

BAFEFABRZ SREENIMIEMSE
BEREBRAEBZAFENRARBEBEAE
RURRERENITETE °

AEEEEERR NEE2RBPHEER - 1E
HRARGEVBRARARZEREELS
BABZEREERNS 2 RFERE -




Financial Instruments (continued) 6. ©EITE (&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERITEBEZAFEE
The Group's financial asset at FVTPL is measured at fair value at RERPLEEH - KREEBNRAFEFABZR
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives e EENATFETE - NREGIIAETE
information about how the fair value of the financial asset at BRATEAABERNEeREEZ A TENER
FVTPL is determined (in particular, the valuation technique and (BEEm=s r BLEERFERZE) -
inputs used).
Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique and unobservable inputs to
Fair value key inputs input fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy HEG % BARH FaBRsgH
SRIEE AFE AFEER REEZH B2y AT ENBER
Financial assets at fair value 10 per cent unlisted Level 3 Reference to the The fair value of The higher the fair
through profit or loss equity interest in E=H fair value of the the underlying  value of the

BATERABRZ
ERMEE

Note:

Shenyang Jiajian
engaged in property
development business

(which holds a
commercial property
for sale), amounting to
HK$29,075,000 (2013:
HK$29,075,000).
RS ER (L EYWE

ISR - HE @
HENBEWE) N
10% IE AR AR
R - $£29,075,000
BT (ZE—=5F:
29,075,000 7T) °

If the fair value of the underlying property is 5% higher/lower while all

other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the unlisted

equity investment would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$7,769,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$4,301,000).

There were no transfers among Level 1, 2 and 3 during both

years.

underlying property based  underlying property,
property and on valuation the higher the fair
after adjustment model (note) value
for lack of EREEERN HERENEQT
marketability R AYE EEYS  ATE-
2ER@EREY A FEME) =
ERTERAR
Z i I im
TEH FEE

st : MEHERREMEDTE LA TFES5% - mATA Hit

BEEZETE AR -_T-NE+-A=+—HBH%k
TR & BREE 1§ 9 B3 R 497,769,000
BT (ZZT—=4% :4,301,000/87T) °

RWEFE 6 F_HARE=ZH2MEL
| o

At 31 December 2014
R=2-—N&+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—# -t 113 B=#& st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FERT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEABR
Mo R EE -
— Unlisted equity investment ~ — FE E TR ARG E - - 29,075 29,075
At 31 December 2013
R-E—=F+=-_A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H F/R E=R a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHIT FHIT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEF AR
HSREE
— Unlisted equity investment ~ — 3F F TR AR E - - 29,075 29,075
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, the management of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider
and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived
observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2
inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the board of directors of the
Company.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
are disclosed in note 15.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial assets at
FVTPL, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
management of the Group will assess its fair value taking into
account primarily the fair value of the underlying property held
by the investee after adjusting for lack of marketability of the
equity investment at the end of the reporting period. At the end
of the reporting period, the management of the Group will
exercise their judgements based on their experience to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the valuation model. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the board of directors of the Company.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of the Group’s financial assets at
FVTPL are disclosed above.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial

TRTA (&)

DV EFERMEERF
IEBEAREENREYEORFE - REEH
AESNTISABREYE - WL EE RS
g AEEGRBEZTNABREEMERM
RAEBNREMELETHE RIE2HRH
R AEEERERIIDEZGEMDERAIE
UNRBE — R RE =R R FEERT IR
EEAENMBETERZE - MBHARERT
SHABRRESL  ARESHTEEER
BERBE - WUEBRE_R2H - FEEEE
AEREE=-R2BN[ETE HEEATF
BREEBAZY  ERAARRAEFERENDY

EREEAREREMEN D FEMBBES
ERSBE BRI 15 WE -

B AEERAFESABRSZEREENR
FER AEEERAESHT IS BRER
B MY EE—R2E8 AEEEEERNHE
BT RABENBRARER  $§X2EER
ERRFBNHEBMENR T EUATEER 2]
HIRANAFE REFHMR *RKEEEER
B HE ARSI HEE (R AT A B E METS
ERZH - WEERTERLEEREY 7
ARBEEEHRERBRA -

BFRBEAEERATEFABSEZCREE
B R FERT AL ETE RSB E RN £ 30

=

EHEEE=RATEANBZHE

assets

Unlisted equity
investment
kETRARE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2013 N-E—-—=F—HF—H 29,812
Loss recognised in profit or loss RIEm RN EE (737)

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 R-E—=F K _F—OF
+=-A=+—H 29,075
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Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover
Turnover in 2013 represented rental income received from
operating leases in the PRC.

Operating segment

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment focusing on properties development and
property investment. This operating segment has been identified
on the basis of internal management reports prepared in
accordance with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
("CODM") (i.e. the executive directors of the Company). The
CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis and properties
portfolio by locations and considers them as one single
operating segment since all properties, including those situated
in Hong Kong and the PRC, are held by the Group for capital
appreciation and development. Other than revenue analysis, no
operating results and other discrete financial information is
available for the assessment of performance of the respective
locations.

The CODM reviews the (loss) profit for the year (before
unrealised gains and changes in fair value of investment
properties) of the Group as a whole to make decisions about
resource allocation. No analysis of segment assets or segment
liabilities is presented as they are not regularly provided to the
CODM. The operation of the Group constitutes one single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 ""Operating segments” and
accordingly, no separate segment information other than entity
level information is prepared.

Geographical information
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
base on the geographical location of the assets as follows:

ERERDEEHN

EXRE
—E-CESEEENTRCEEENESK
A °

e

AEBNREEBHEIMERREMERE
M — D ARHETT o B E D BB E N BT
FEMBHREEANNS T BERMRmE 2 REEE
BRETAHRN  AFELEREE([FEL
BRARE] IARBRITESR) EMEM - =
RILEREE TF RIRPIE E R W E DT R
X5 AREHVE(BRUNETELRTH
MYE) DR ARERIFEIBERFAE &
BRE—EENE - RlmoWI - HERE
FENEMEBRBEENAES R RIRFE -

TERERREENASENERFN(BE)
B (PEFRIREMEZ KRB WS RN FE
) UMEHBERDEORE - AR HEE H
AERLERRERHRDFPEEL D BAED
- MAEEINZESN - REBEEBHEL
P mEERFE S [KEDH | REZE K
B0 EBARRK - F I AR R E A K AN {E
R ERE R o

B E R
REBRMESHE D NIERDEEE R
T

2014 2013
=E-mE | ZT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 39,400 38,400
PRC an 1,427,771 1,428,913
1,467,171 1,467,313
Information about major customers EBEXEEFHNEHR

Turnover from customers of the corresponding year contributing
over 10% of total turnover of the Group are as follows:

HEFEREEP Z(hLBa A EEEEEE
10% B SERRAAT -

2014 2013

—2-mE | T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Customer A ZEH N/A 1,167
Customer B BE7, N/A 1,475

I AERRAMRAE R —DUFEHR 67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A T B R M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT-—NE+-A=+—BILEE

8. Other Income, Gains and Losses 8. HfA - kzKkEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Interest income on bank deposits RTINS A 13,100 3,125
Imputed interest income (note) FEETFILEMA (FFFE) 1,622 12,976
Net exchange gain I Nz 558 123 22,196
Management fee income BERBUA - 966
Expenses incurred in relation to disposal of HE—RKBERARELZ
a subsidiary (note 19) B (ME19) (1,683) -
Project management income B H BB A 7,037 2,732
Sundries HETH 17 2,007
20,216 44,002
Note: Imputed interest income represented unwinding of imputed interest arising BREE - FERHR B U AR RE i SH R U & — B AR 2R
on amortisation of fair value adjustment of deferred consideration ERER T ERREMEEEATE -
receivable in respect of disposal of a subsidiary.
9. Finance Costs 9. BB
2014 2013
—E—-mE —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
Interest on amounts due to fellow subsidiaries i ASIEES N =GB
(interest bearing portion) (GHBES?) 2 F & - 464
10. Taxation 10. 1B
2014 2013
—F-mE| =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
The taxation charge comprises: MBS HEE
Withholding tax BN 246 _
PRC tax (Note) AR IE (FEE) - 100,930
(Over)underprovision in prior years: URIFE (GB%) TR EHE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAFEH (14) 23
232 100,953
Deferred tax (note 24) IEIERIE (FisE24) - (95,766)
232 5,187

68

Note: PRC tax for the year ended 31 December 2013 represented the tax arising
from disposal of a subsidiary which held an investment property in Tianjin,

the PRC, in prior year as set out in note 27.

Wi BE-F-=F+-A=t-BILEEOFERER
SRR R — R ORI WO H B 2 AP

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the assessable profit during both years. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the Group has no assessable profit for both years.
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10. Taxation (continued)

Withholding tax represents tax on interest income received from
a subsidiary in the PRC at 7% of the amount received during
the year.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (""LAT") effective from 1
January 1994 and amended on 8 January 2011, and the
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax effective from 27 January 1995, all
gains arising from the sale or transfer of real estate in the PRC
with effect from 1 January 1994 are subject to LAT at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties
less deductible expenditures including payments made for
acquisition of land use rights, costs and expenses for the
development of the land or for construction of new buildings
and supporting facilities, or the assessed value for old buildings
and structures, tax payable relating to transfer of the real estate
and other deductible items prescribed by the Ministry of
Finance. Apart from the aforementioned deductions, property
developers enjoy an additional deduction, which is equal to
20% of the payment made for acquisition of land use rights
and the costs of land development and construction of new
buildings or related facilities.

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

10. Bi1E (&)

BINRERRNFREEMLATEN —EF A
YR H) R S U AKREER 7% 5HE -

?ﬁﬁiqﬂi/\ﬁ/ﬁtﬂi%?ﬁ %)%J?i(ﬁt%ﬁﬁ
BOED REERGN - AT N\F—-H—H
AR AR BB X AR AR K 25% AT o

BREE—NANOF—A—BRAERAR_-Z
——F—ANBEBTHPEARLIME
BEM ([T ER D) ETEIRE—AA
F-RA -+t HAEBESTRE T HIEERETT
10 B e 4 Bl (G578 [ T8 E RIS ) 8958
FoR—NANNE—A—BEMBEFREE
B H s B8 AR U 25 7B B M (B R (E 4R + M IR (E T
ZEFE30% £ 60% AN+ M IBER - (B
HENYEHEMBSREREAHRE H (8
T U B -t (55 PR TS 5R0E e £ b B B s
BEFLAEERERIKATNER EME
LYFIBEYNGE  BEHEEEEHENEE
FRIBFE ISR T EMAATHRIER © K it
MBS - BHEREEA ZAEIMNIR SR
U B + Hb (5 PR P~ 0B e i F B A i 58
AR TR R A AN H) 20% ©

REFRNHIE X M RG A B M A2 E RS
RETRBAT (B1R) S A 2 BRI T

2014 2013

—ZE-nmE —=—=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

(Loss) profit before taxation Al (BB (13,646) 63,844
Tax at applicable income tax rate 25% 1ZiE FAFTIS 3R 25% BRI IR (3,412) 15,961
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BAERBRIMAOE G T2 (4,475) (24,890)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7~a] ¥1F% 58 % R TS B2 & 4,225 8,804
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIEEENHGTE 2,723 3,312
LAT o 3 B RS - 2,346
Tax effect of LAT T B ERA RS E - (586)

Tax effect of adjustment on deemed cost for LAT AETE IR ER R EREE

and EIT calculation MABBIER AR 2 TS & - 2,623
Withholding tax JERIIE 246 _
(Over)underprovision in respect of prior years BAFE(BZ)TREE (14) 23
Others Hith 939 (2,4006)
232 5,187
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11.

70

(Loss) Profit for the Year

1. FR(&HE)

gl

2014 2013
—E-lmF —T—=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at FA(ER)RNE R (GEA)
after charging (crediting): TFEAR :
Directors’ remuneration (note 12): B (fisE12) -
Fees e 500 180
Other emoluments H b 2 B 2,551 1,193
Bonus TEAT 650 900
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRI ET B R 34 13
3,735 2,286
Other staff costs, excluding retirement FRIRRIBAIET S RINZ
benefits scheme contributions HBIRA 15,777 8,221
Retirement benefits scheme contributions for staffs & TiR{IKtE T 21430 532 448
Total staff costs 4R BRI 20,044 10,955
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B & 717 733
Expenses in relation to the Listing (included in EAE GIAEMSTH)
other expenses) - 18,291
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BEMREZITE 811 1,981
Release of prepaid lease payments B ERIEE T 18,066 -
Less: Amount capitalised in properties W ERIRER LS
under development (18,066) -
Gross rental income from investment properties KREMEMRS WAL - (4,490)
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment W FRNEARES
properties that generated rental income WAZIREWER
during the year BEEEEHRT - 4,573
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment B FRNTEAEE
properties that did not generate rental WA ZIEEMER
income during the year HELERY 2,152 2,066
2,152 2,149
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12. Directors’ and Employees” Remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable by LIHL or the Group to the
directors and the chief executives of the Company were as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

12. EEREEME

LHLS A REE N EN FARREERER
TTHABMMEIT :

BE-_Z-HF+-A=1tT—HLFE

Contributions

Salaries to retirement
Director's and other benefits
fees benefits Bonus scheme Total
HER BHRER
E=He Htr g F AL BEL FoH
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TET TER TER
(note a)
(Kizta)
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy ey ] 1,051 50 17 1,118
Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy Ry ME 1,500 600 17 2,117
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Lyt 100 100
Mr. Wong Man Hoi EXE%E 100 100
Independent non-executive BUESNITES
directors (note b) (D)
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WRBE T E 100 - - - 100
Mr. Robert Charles Robert Charles
Nicholson Nicholson %t & 100 100
Mr. Wong Kun Kau HEMEL 100 100
500 2,551 650 34 3,735
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-_E—=F+-A=t+—HIFE
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
Director’s and other benefits
fees benefits Bonus scheme Total
\ Hek RRAER] \
EEYkn H A iEA| TEa Bl @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FEL THT FEL THT
(note a)
(Mizta)
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRI/ ME - 374 100 6 480
Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy (RSN ] - 579 800 7 1,386
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas ElES-Fed 40 240 - - 280
Mr. Wong Man Hol FERE 35 - - - 35
Independent non-executive BN TES
directors (note b) T5h
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WKL E 35 - - - 35
Mr. Robert Charles Robert Charles
Nicholson Nicholson %t & 35 - - - 35
Mr. Wong Kun Kau HERELE 35 - - - 35
180 1,193 900 13 2,286
Notes: i

(a) The bonus is determined having regard to the performance of the
respective individual and market trends.

(b) The independent non-executive directors were appointed by the Company

effective from August 2013.

3 A B R AT PR )

TEABFEARR LTS BEETE

BT —=F AL ARARENBIIFNTE
=,

SR PR
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12.

13.

72

Directors” and Employees” Remuneration
(continued)

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy and Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy are
also the chief executives of the Company and their emoluments
disclosed above included those for services rendered by them as
the chief executives.

The five highest paid individuals included one director (2013:
two directors) and the chief executives of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014, details of whose remuneration
is disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining highest
paid individuals during the year were as follows:

12.

EENEEME (&)

RIER/PNE - OB/ NMATTRA R EEITR
AB M ENRENRENM S BREEE
REBITRABREREAREE -

HE_Z-—HWE+_A=+—HILFE F2
ARABRRHALTTFE - BR/ARATESR(—
T-=F ZH)RIBTHRAE - EMEH
B EXHRE - RFEEHE - HSfREaHAL
FFENEA T -

2014 2013
—E-mE | T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F@xT FHET

Employees: EE :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R N H AR 4,375 1,337
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRIEFIET BN 701 218
Performance related incentive payments HERIDEMAR RS 335 380
5,411 1,935

The emolument of the remaining employees (senior
management) were within the following band:

HipER (SREERE) 2HFMN FATHE

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE ANEX

HK$nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7% 7T - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 1,500,000 % 7T 3 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 2,000,000 7T 1 -

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors
and the chief executives of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. No directors and
chief executives waived any emoluments during both years.
Prior to the Listing, remuneration for the directors and the chief
executives and other highest paid individuals were borne by
LIHL for their services rendered to the Group.

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2014, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2013: nil).
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14. (Loss) Farnings per Share 14. B (Fi18) B8R

On the assumption that the Reorganisation has been effective BREAR T =F—A—BLEELER ' [
on 1 January 2013 and adjusted for retrospectively the sub- BB IERT IR R B A% (0 EL & AL 277 (B 5F
division of shares in the Company and the Capitalisation Issue ERRERKTE25)  EAFGR (E1E) BF IR
(details of which are more fully explained in note 25), the basic BUATEUE -
(loss) earnings per share is based on the following data:
2014 2013
—EZ-QmEF —E—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
(Loss) earnings (E18) &
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to PETEFRER (F518) B F)
owners of the Company for the purpose of [P NG 2 =N Xl
basic (loss) earnings per share RERE (FE) % (13,878) 58,657
‘000 ‘000
TR’ T
Number of shares avar S4E!
Weighted average number of shares for ?diﬁ”’_ﬂxﬁzli (E518) &7
the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share = 2 EmA NS E 419,114 153,787
No dilutive (loss) earnings per share is presented as there were HRMESEH2 A EEEE 2 @k - e
no dilutive potential ordinary shares during both years. wm20| GRS (F18) BFIER -
15. Investment Properties 15. REY=
Completed
Investment
Properties
=534
REWE
HK$'000
FET
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January 2013 RZEBE—=F—H—H 684,397
Additions during the year FRRE 7,396
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R ER . N EE M
— Realised gain on disposal HjE“fﬁH&/\ 4
— Unrealised gain — REBUYE 6,487
Disposal HE (864)
Exchange adjustments i 5 8B 19,333
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+—-_A=+—H 716,753
Additions during the year FNARE 5,202
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRHPERZREH AT ERL
— Unrealised loss — REBIEBAE (3,053)
Exchange adjustments P H (18,499)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WNF+=-_/A=+—H 700,403
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15.

74

Investment Properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
comprises:

15.

REY= (&)
B ERAY R R (B B1E -

2014 2013

—Z-lmEF —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Land in Hong Kong held under medium-term lease ~ #A & &R EITA L) H 2 +Hb 39,400 38,400
Land in PRC held under medium-term lease RAPBREREAOIFE 2 i 661,003 678,353
700,403 716,753

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The Group'’s investment properties situated in Harbin with
carrying value of RMB277,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$345,765,000) (2013: RMB277,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$354,837,000)) has not yet obtained the legal
document in respect of the real estate title certificate.
Management of the Group considers there is no material legal
impediment for the Group to obtain the real estate title
certificate.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated in
Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 December 2014 was determined
by directors of the Company with reference to a valuation
carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group whose address is 16/F., Jardine House, Central, Hong
Kong, at 30 November 2014. DTZ is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated in
Hong Kong at 31 December 2013 had been arrived at based on
a valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty
Limited (“Knight Frank”), an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group whose address is 4/F, Shui
On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Knight
Frank is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated in
the PRC at 31 December 2013 had been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out on that date by Shanghai BDGH Chartered
Valuation Surveyors Co., Ltd. (“BDGH"), an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group whose
address is Unit A407, Changzhi Building, No. 701 Dongchangzhi
Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai, 200080, the PRC. BDGH is a
member of The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.
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15. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated in
Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 December 2014 was determined
by directors of the Company with reference to a valuation
carried out by DTZ at 30 November 2014 and recent property
market data of similar properties in the relevant locations. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of these
properties at 31 December 2014 approximates the fair value at
30 November 2014. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties at 30 November 2014 was arrived at based on direct
comparison method assuming sales of each property interests in
their existing state and making references to comparable market
observable transactions of similar properties in the same
locations and conditions as available in the relevant market.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated in
Hong Kong at 31 December 2013 carried out by Knight Frank
was determined based on direct comparison method assuming
sales of each property interests in their existing state and
making references to comparable market observable
transactions of similar properties in the same locations and
conditions as available in the relevant market.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated in
Qingdao and Harbin, the PRC at 31 December 2013 carried out
by BDGH were determined based on income method — direct
capitalisation approach by capitalising future rental income
derived from the property interest at an appropriate market
yield for the remaining term of the land use rights of the
properties.

The directors of the Company considered that the change in
valuation technique with respect to those properties in the PRC
at 31 December 2014 is appropriate as the valuation technique
used in the current year is based on market price of similar
properties and locations, and shall equally reflect the property
value as compare to income approach used in the prior year
which was based on adjusted market rentals and capitalisation
rate. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts of those
properties are approximately HK$661,003,000 (2013:
HK$678,353,000).

15.

REWZE (&)

AEBUREERPENRENER TN
FH+_A=+—HORAFEDHARFAEES
EHEBROIN _F—NOF+—-A=1THETT
Z (A R R LT ¥ 3 ) T 50 A 20 1
EeARREFTAR/LZFIVER_FT—NF
ToA=+T-BMNAFERER T FE+—
A=Z1THORXFERE - ARENREMER
“E-NE+—-A=THANQATERNAEEL
BEBRBEDERESERRLERSEAH
iz AR EZMEN AL HERZ 5K

AEBUREENRENER _T—=F+=
A=+ —BARGEEN R FEEAERLR
ERREEMERRAERRLER2ZE@M
GZRBEMHRERMENTLLHEX S RE
T o

AEBURTFEEEREREZREMER -
E—=F+t - A=+—RABNEERHENR
FERRRAE — BEEERLE  BEEY
FE L A2 MRFHNIREE 15K
T Y ERRNRKESRABTEARNE

TF °

ANREERANEMNPFEAPER-Z
—MFE+ A=+ BNAFENHERER
AEH - RARAFEFRANGESEZZER
B ERNTISERET @ LRALHE
MEHEERER L RAEERNEEEARL
o RERIS R M ENEE - ARRES
RERNEE LA FENGER AERF R
EAZEWERHBEESRFRANDAFE-
R-ZE—ME+-_A=+—0 ZEMWED
8K T B 49 /& 661,003,000 L ( — & — =4 :
678,353,00078 7T) °
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15. Investment Properties (continued)

76

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value

15. REWZE (&)

TREIZEREMERXTENEEITTEL
HREMEDERAER2E) ARREQFE
EH - ERATEFEZENAERREES B

hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are —E=f-
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
Carrying value of Relationship of
investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
AEEfBRENE AFE &ES % EXAT TUREZH
REE £ REEZY BE2Y BEATENBGR
At 31 December 2014
“Z-ME+=A=+-H
Commercial property in Qingdao Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using The higher the price per square
EERENE E=1 assuming sale in its existing state  market direct comparablesand ~ metre, the higher the fair value.
HK$315,238,000 and by reference to comparable taking into account locationand & F 5K ER#E - ATEHR o
315,238,000 7T sales evidences as available in the  other individual factors such as
relevant market. environment, building facilities,
MUBRHERSEEBMBZ  levels, etc., which is ranging from
A EERSMEELEE . RMBY,203/5q.m. to RMB13,876./
sq.m.
The key inputs are: BETHRERERERETS
FERHA: BB AEL L ALE KA
(1) Price per square metre; and ~ ERIRIE - MERE - RFIZ
BYHAER: K FERE  RETHRARY
(2) Level adjustment 9,203 TEARK13,8767L °
FAFE
Level adjustment on individual The higher the level adjustment,
floors of the property range from  the lower the fair value.
45% 10 70% on specific levels. SR AIBEMS - A TEHIE -
NEREENRIBER
(BRI REI45% Z 70% °
Commercial property in Harbin Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using The higher the price per square
RREEEME F=H assuming sale in its existing state  market direct comparables and  metre, the higher the fair value.
HK$345,765,000 and by reference to comparable  taking into account location and Bk {ERHS - ATEMS o
345,765,000 % 7T sales evidences as available in the  other individual factors such as
relevant market. environment, building facilities,
DEMREERBZEBMSL  levels, etc., of RMB27,500/5.m.
ANHERIMERLE L RETHKRERERERTS
P B AL 5t AL E R AR R
The key inputs are: REIRE - MERE - RAIS
FE2HR: FERZ  RETHXRARYE
(1) Price per square metre; and 27,500 7T °
BYAKER R
(2) Level adjustment Level adjustment on individual The higher the level adjustment,
R floors of the property range from  the lower the fair value.
45% 10 70% on specific levels. B BEME - AFEMIE -
NEREBORIEER
ERIBRET45% £70% °
Commercial properties Level 2 Direct comparison method N/A N/A
in Hong Kong E-5 assuming sale in its existing state i TER
BEABENE and by reference to comparable
HK$39,400,000 sales evidences as available in the
39,400,000 7T relevant market.

NRREERZZHEEMIELZ
AL HER HERLBE °
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Carrying value of

15. Investment Properties (continued)

15. REWZE (&)

Relationship of

investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs

held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
FEBAFRENE AVE RER % EXAT TURESH

BREE e RIESH BE2Y HAHERBR

At 31 December 2013

ZBR-ZHF+ZAZt+-H

Commercial property in Qingdao Level 3 Income method — Direct Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the capitalisation
EEEENE F=4 Capitalisation Approach account of the capitalisation of  rate, the lower the fair value.

HK$323,516,000
323,516,000/ T

WAL — BREMEAE

The key inputs are:

FE2HA:

(1) Capitalisation rate;
BARHLE

(2) Daily unit rent; and
BUBAMR: &

(3) Level adjustment
WRIEE

rental income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing
market condition, of 11%.
BHAEARELBEEBNEN
MEBERENTR EAL
HEA11% -

Daily unit rent, based on gross
floor area, using direct market
comparable and taking into
account of time, location and
individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and
facilities, of RMB13.17/sq.m./
day.
REBERBENELAARA
BREMSLE AL G AR
- LERERZNEEE
B WERRIERAESEHER
2 AETHRARE13ATT -

Level adjustment on individual
floors of the property range from
65% to 95% on specific levels.
NEEZBENRAINBERER
RHI65% £ 95% °

3 A B R AT PR )

EME RS - APERE -

The higher the daily unit rent,
the higher the fair value.
B AfMS  ATEES -

The higher the level adjustment,
the lower the fair value.

RpHRES  DTEME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

f A B 5 e I (A1)

for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT-—NE+-A=+—BILEE

15. Investment Properties (continued) 15. BEYE (8)
Carrying value of Relationship of
investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
EEEFBERENE AVE HES % EXFT FTUBRSH
BREE E311 REEZY BE2Y HATLENBE
Commercial property in Harbin Level 3 Income method — Direct Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the capitalisation
IREBEENE F=H Capitalisation Approach account of the capitalisation of  rate, the lower the fair value.
HK$354,837,000 WAE— BERERETE rental income potential, nature  BEA{LHEHE - AFEMIE o
354,837,000 T of the property, prevailing
The key inputs are: market condition, of 12%.
FE2YA: KEUN -V (i EX ONCPIR
(1) Capitalisation rate; MEMEREATR  AX(
BACEE HEA12% e
(2) Daily unit rent; and
BAHEM: R Daily unit rent, based on gross The higher the daily unit rent,
(3) Level adjustment floor area, using direct market the higher the fair value.
R EE comparables and taking into BfAfME A TEES -
account of time, location and
individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property and
facilities, of RMB15.48/sq.m./
day.
REEHEENELAAER
BEETSLE AL G AR
e ERENRZNGEEE
% NERRERESAZ B
BFHRARE15.4870
Level adjustment on individual The higher the level adjustment,
floors of the property range from  the lower the fair value.
50% to 95% on specific levels.  RBIFLME - ATFEBIE o
NEZEENRABER
{ERIERHI50% £95% °
Commercial properties Level 2 Direct comparison method based ~ N/A N/A
in Hong Kong B on market observable A &R
EETEELY transactions of similar properties
HK$38,400,000 and adjust to reflect the
38,400,000 7T conditions and locations of the

78

subject property.
ERRENETSIEE
RHRRBENZER
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. 1% BMERRE
Furniture,
Plant and fixture and Motor
machinery equipment vehicles Total
=IE
Eijat 3
T B i 28 e AE #aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET
cosT R
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—H—H 77 10,951 181 11,209
Exchange adjustments IE 5 a8 2 326 5 333
At 31 December 2013 RIZ—=%F
+=-—A=+—H 79 11,277 186 11,542
Exchange adjustments fE H A% (3) (309) (7) (319)
Additions NE - 315 - 315
At 31 December 2014 NZT—MF
+=-A=+—H 76 11,283 179 11,538
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—H—H 30 8,229 181 8,440
Exchange adjustments fE H A% 1 273 5 279
Provided for the year FNEE 14 1,967 - 1,981
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%F
+=-A=+—H 45 10,469 186 10,700
Exchange adjustments [E 5 F % (1) (295) (7) (303)
Provided for the year FEBHE 11 800 - 811
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—mF
+=—A=+—H 55 10,974 179 11,208
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—OF
+=-—A=+—H 21 309 - 330
At 31 December 2013 RIE—=%F
+=-—A=+—H 34 808 - 842
The above items of property, plant and equipment are i) - S KRR B IR R B AR
depreciated after taking into account their estimated residual BRABSER TG A AFRAER
value, on a straight-line basis, over the following estimated £
useful lives:
Plant and machinery 10 years W K gs T
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years BB BEREREE HEF
Motor vehicles 5 years A HEF
Properties under Development 17. BRPYIZE

17.

The amount comprised project pre-development costs,

professional fees, amortisation of prepaid lease payment

capitalised and other related fees and taxes with respect to the
development of the Group's prepaid lease payments.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has not yet obtained the final
approval on the planning design scheme from the relevant PRC
government authority with respect to the property development

project. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

amount is expected to be realised after twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.

BB EREREEEMNESAE R AT
RE HXEB ENCRANESBEEREMEA
ERLNIEA -

R=Z—mE+=F=+—0 - KEEHRKE
AR E AT P ER S AL R R IE A 1 A
R RGBT - AR T EERBMIE
TEHIR AR 2 SRR AR+ — 18 LA B BT o

I AERRAMRAE R —DUFEHR 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A T B R M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT-—NE+-A=+—BILEE

18.

19.

80

Prepaid Lease Payments

18. FE{NHEE

2014 2013
—E—MF 2=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
NET BOOK VALUE BREFE
At the beginning of the year F4) 705,799 685,871
Amortisation b (18,066) -
Exchange adjustments [E 5% (19,285) 19,928
At the end of the year FR 668,448 705,799
Other Receivables 19. HEWFRIE
2014 2013
—E-F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Consideration receivable for disposal of HE— B AR ERNRE
a subsidiary (note) (BF&E) - 349,964
Value added tax receivables FE U (E 551 547
Prepayments TE{SFRIE 565 275
Rental, utility and other deposits e KEEREMLS 382 141
Interest receivable FEUW R E 263 105
Others Hi 126 110
1,887 351,142
Note: The amount at 31 December 2013 comprised RMB2,000,000 e : RZT—=F+A=+—BNERBIERKRES

(approximately HK$2,562,000) and RMB272,500,000 (approximately
HK$347,402,000) represented the guarantee deposit receivable and final
payment receivable, respectively, from an independent third party from the
disposal of Li Hua Jia Commercial Building (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“Li Hua Jia
(Tianjin)") in prior year. Details of the disposal are disclosed in note 27. The
final payment receivable had been fully settled during the current year. In
respect to the guarantee deposit receivable, an amount of RMB650,000
(approximately HK$811,000) had been settled during the current year,
while the remaining balance of RMB1,350,000 (approximately
HK$1,683,000) had been charged to profit or loss (included in other

income, gains and losses) as certain charges and expenses incurred by Li

Hua Jia (Tianjin) should be borne by the Group pursuant to the sales and

purchase agreement and was deducted from the guarantee deposit.
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R EREEEERR)BRAR(TFIEERR) D)
MEE L E=FNSEEKRRE  DAARKE
2,000,000 7T (492,562,000 7% 7T.) & A R# 272,500,000
7 (49347,402,0007 7T ) © Bt H & FIZEE(K)Z) B
B BERME27 - HEBRFBERARERZLE -
ERERRES  EHNRBREEERET S TEER
NEHERENFEE(KR)TEE 2RI RERE
A% 650,000 7T (49811,00087T) 2 SAE RANFLR
[ - &8 AR 1,350,000 7T (#91,683,000 7% 7T) B 5
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20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through

21.

Profit or Loss

20. BAFEFABRZEREE

2014 2013

=F-NE | T =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Unlisted equity investment in the PRC RARBIMIE ETRARE 29,075 29,075

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the unlisted
equity investment in the PRC represents the Group’s retained
10% equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian. The fair value as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 is determined by
reference to the fair value of the underlying property assessed
by the management of the Group and after adjusting for lack of
marketability of the investment.

Bank Balances and Cash/Fixed Deposits

R-ZE—NE+_-_A=+—"HER-Z—=F
+=ZA=+—H " RPBEAIELTRARETR
AREBFRBERERZZ10%BRE - R=2F
—mNF+_A=+—BkZ=ZZE—=F+=A
=t+—HAZATELERASEERENEHA
EEMEZATFEET  ERERERZ™T
BB ER AR -

CBRITHEFERREEEHER

2014 2013
—E-mF —ZF—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Bank balances and cash RITHETFRRE 63,161 94,173
Time deposits with original maturity of JREER DR =1E A&

three months or less FEETFER 438,230 191,576

501,391 285,749

Bank balances and cash comprised mainly short-term deposits
and time deposits which carry interest at prevailing market rates
ranging from 0.01% to 3.51% per annum (""p.a.”) (2013:
0.01% to 3.30% p.a.) with original maturity of three months or

less.

The fixed deposits amounted to HK$64,742,000 (2013: nil)
carried fixed interest rate which ranges from 3.08% to 3.30%
p.a. with an original maturity of six months to one year.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts

BITEERRES T EARUAERHNISERN RN
F00NEE3ISIE(ZE—=%F: NF001E
Z33E)HENEHERNERER  ERE
HR LW =MEA -

64,742,000 T (—F—=F : #)NEHEXR
RETEFFEE3.08EE330F - ERTHR
mAEAZE—F -

RITEFRREBRTIIARBEE TR

denominated in currencies other than functional currency of the EEAINEE B FRIE -
relevant group entities:
2014 2013
—2-mE| =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
HK$ BT 72,908 89,121
Us$ =Y 44,668 82,658

I AERRAMRAE R —DUFEHR 8 1



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB T B R I L ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NF+-A=1+—RHLEFE

22. Other Payables and Accrued Charges 22. HttEA AR ETTEH

2014 2013
—ZT-mF T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Construction costs payables (note a) FETEEER (Mta) 1,044 217
Accrued charges (note b) FEEtE R (Mi5tb) 6,415 6,585
Others Hih 33 338
7,492 7,140

Notes: PR 3E
(@) The amount represents construction costs payables based on invoices (@) RRRRE R AR RN HOBRRA -

received from respective constructors.

(b) Accrued charges mainly represent accrued construction costs and accrued
expenses for professional fees, staffs’ salaries and other staff welfare
expenses.

23. Amounts Due from (to) Fellow Subsidiaries 23.

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries represent project
management income receivable from fellow subsidiaries. The
amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. The amount represented the
net payable in respect of rental expenses incurred and project
management income charged by the Group to a fellow
subsidiary in prior year.
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(b) EERIRIERTREEM BAEXER AR
HeRhHAMEIREFLE -

FEWR (FEAY) ] 22 B /BB 22 B FRIR
KR R M B A R AR AR E AR 2
BRERKA - RHEMER  £BAANE
S EE -

e —HRRMEARRIEEER 28 HA
RERKEFHEIR - ZFRER AR FEAEEEH
—HRAEMBARNES X HRIAREEKA
HY BT 3K o



24. Deferred Tax Liabilities

24, EEFIEAE

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and EHZAFrEEEHEAGURERNNE SN
movements thereon during the year: T:
EIT on fair
value change of
investment
properties LAT Total
REYE
AR ERE
EERNLTE
g T IEE B et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET
(note) (note)
(BFEE) (B 5E)
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—A—H 56,774 204,035 260,809
Exchange adjustments T 5, % 1,729 3,100 4,829
Charge (credit) to profit or loss BB GTA)
(note 10) (FFEE10) 2,818 (98,584) (95,766)
At 31 December 2013 N B —=4F
+=-A=+—-H 61,321 108,551 169,872
Exchange adjustments M 3 B (1,676) (2,965) (4,641)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MF
+=—A=+—H 59,645 105,586 165,231
Note: The amounts represent deferred tax liabilities recognised in relation to LAT MiEE . RRRERLRPENREY R A FEZLBHES

and EIT on fair value changes of investment properties located in the PRC.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of

approximately HK$55,619,000 (2013: HK$54,949,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. The tax losses in Hong Kong may carry
forward indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses in the PRC will

expire as follows:

LR ERMERAERMEROETERERE -

R-ZE—NF+-A=+—HAEERPAHR

I8 [ 18 #955,619,000% T( — & — = & :

54,949,00078 7T ) Al A $H R AE F o AR
EORTRARNCERN I Bt 2 SR MR
BXETRIBEE - BETIABIER BRASE -

Tk B 2o BT BB AT 18 9 2 DR A0 T

2014 2013

—E-mEF 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT F&TT

Tax losses expiring in T i TS B AR B IE s 18

-2014 — T —OF - 10,220
- 2015 ——ZE—RF 8,556 8,556
-2016 — 2 —ARF 11,449 11,449
- 2017 — —ZT—+F 11,478 11,478
-2018 — —E—N\F 12,787 12,787
-2019 — —ZE—-NF 10,371 -
54,641 54,490
FlfEsE B RARA ™ R —EFR 83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A T B R M ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z—NF+-A=1+—ALFE

24. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued) 24.

The remaining balances of approximately HK$978,000 (2013:
HK$459,000) at 31 December 2014 represent the deductible
temporary differences in respect of staff costs, office and other
expenses in Hong Kong which may carry forward indefinitely.

In determining the deferred taxes arising on the fair value
change of investment properties, the management of the Group
reviewed the Group's investment properties portfolio at the end
of the reporting period and concluded not to rebut the
presumption of recovery through sale in respect of the Group'’s
investment properties situated in the PRC amounting to
HK$661,003,000 (2013: HK$678,353,000) and the Group's
investment properties situated in Hong Kong amounting to
HK$39,400,000 (2013: HK$38,400,000).

The Group has recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties situated in the PRC as those
properties are subject to land appreciation taxes and income
taxes upon disposal as appropriate. No deferred tax has been
recognised on changes in fair value of the investment properties
situated in Hong Kong as it is not expected to have tax
consequence upon disposal of these properties.
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FEIEFIEEE (&)
R-E—NME+ -_F=+—BHNBRY
978,000% 7T ( — ZF — = £ : 459,000 7T ) 5
BEBEBETRA  PBAERHMEAT I E
PREAAE S AT R 58 ©

RETHREMENTFEEHELNELTHE -
AEEEEBRNFEBRTAEENEEDE
BE RETREABRAEBZAFHE H
661,003,000 7t ( — & — = 4 : 678,353,000
BIL) IR E Y E R R EE S 39,400,000
BT (Z—Z— =14 : 38,400,000/& 70 ) (I E Y
¥DUFEBHERBMERE -

el A 4 5 o L 0 2 S A T S LR
i - HARERRESNENRFEED
RABIERA - MR AHLERBRANWET
FEABEER  HAEELERESTNEN
AT ERHREDEEHE -



25. Share Capital 25. A
AR TR E S Z B FARRAZ ZH T

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during
both years are as follows:

Number of
shares Amount
RPER M
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares EER
Authorised: ERE
On 1 January 2013 (HK$1.0 each) R-E—=%F—H—H
(ZlmEE1.08T) 380,000 380
Share sub-division and increase in Betn 2 HF BRAGANETE A (B3t a)

authorised share capital (note a) 1,999,620,000 199,620
At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 RZE—=F+-A=+—HK

(HK$0.10 each) —E-NF+=-A=+—H

(ERmEE1ET) 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
At 1 January 2013 (HK$1.0 each) RZZT—=F—H—H
(BRMEE1.0%8T) 2 -
Issue of shares pursuant to Reorganisation RIEEEEIT 2R (FHEED)

(note b) 9,001 9
Share sub-division (note b) Bt o 3 (M 7Eb) 81,027 -
Issue of shares pursuant to the Capitalisation RIBEERNEEBITZMRG (B

Issue (note c) 332,109,970 33,211
Issue of shares pursuant to the Share Offer BERDEERRT 25 (HisEd)

(note d) 83,600,000 8,360
Issue of shares pursuant to the exercise of BRI TP BRI ERE T 2 D

Over-Allotment Option (note e) (Mfzke) 3,314,000 331
At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 HW-ZZ—=F+-A=+—HF

(HK$0.10 each) —E-NF+=-A=+—H

(BlEEEEL) 419,114,000 41,91
FlfEsE B RARA ™ R —EFR 85
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for the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-ZT-ME+-A=+—HLEE

25. Share Capital (continued) 25. RN (48)

Notes: FfisE -

a. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Island on 5 January 2012 a. ZZE-——F—AAAB  ARRRFASESEMMKT
with an authorised capital of HK$380,000 divided into 380,000 shares of VETE MR %380,00058 7T + 9 4% 380,000 & &A% 1.078
HK$1 each. Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then sole THR c REAATK-RER=ZZ—=F/\A
shareholder of the Company passed on 20 August 2013, each of the ZTHEBBHNEERABR  AAARAFEREE
issued and unissued shares of HK$1.0 each in the share capital of the 1.00BTTHBE BT RRBEITROBIFAR10RETK
Company was subdivided into 10 shares of HK$0.10 each so that the EE0.10E TR - A A AR &90,030KE
share capital of the Company comprised 90,030 issued shares and BITRRD %2 3,709,970/ R EE1 TR - BARE(E/0.10
3,709,970 unissued shares of HK$0.10 each and the authorised share T Wi A% ER 1,996,200,000 A& A& 17 + AR A A
capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to Y2 TE A% 7 B 380,000 7% 7T 4% Z= 200,000,000 7 7T ©

HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional of 1,996,200,000 shares.

b. On 14 August 2013, Total Prestige Holdings Limited (“Total Prestige”) b. ZE-=FNRATHMAE - 2RERERAR ([2R])
acquired from Beauty Power Limited (“Beauty Power”), a wholly-owned FLHLE 2 BB AR EBER AR ([ER]) WiE=E
subsidiary of LIHL, the entire issued share capital of Sonic Plus Limited AARAR(ZR])  KEBRAR([RE]) M
(“Sonic Plus”), Joyous Wing Limited (“Joyous Wing”) and Good Insight ARAFR([E#H D HE2HBERITRAERZS - KEM
Limited (“Good Insight”) and the benefits of the loans owed by Sonic Plus, EHRANERNERNANSZ RES2HO B
Joyous Wing and Good Insight to Beauty Power for a consideration of 109,928,000 % 7T * 141,123,000 7T & 774,690,000
approximately HK$109,928,000, HK$141,123,000 and HK$774,690,000, BIT 0 AR BB ZE B &Y 48 /R [AILIHL 2 51 817 1,000
respectively, and satisfied by the issue of 1,000, 1,000 and 7,000 new 1,000 }2.7,000 f& AN 2 RIFT A 89 75 LA ©

shares of the Company, respectively, to LIHL as directed by Beauty Power.

On 14 August 2013, Total Prestige acquired from Vision Pilot Group ZE-=F)\ATHmA " 2RALHLOZEK B
Limited (“Vision Pilot”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of LIHL, the entire /A #]Vision Pilot Group Limited ([ Vision Pilot]) 4 &
issued share capital of Statevalue Limited for a consideration of Statevalue Limited ¥ 2 # 2 #1TIRA - REXNR8E
approximately HK$8 and satisfied by the issue of one new share of the JC + LARRER Vision Pilot M) #§ R [AILIHL & 17 1 iR AR A
Company to LIHL as directed by Vision Pilot. MRE A -

c. Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then sole shareholder of the c RBEAATE—RER_F—=F/\AZT"BBB
Company passed on 26 August 2013, a sum of approximately NEBRBR BEARARMEERNETD
HK$33,211,000 standing to the credit of the share premium account of 33,211,000 7T & A1t - MLHLE 2 & 2174 &
the Company was capitalised by paying up in full at par a total of 332,109,970 R EE SR AVETAR (D ([ E AL EEAT)) ©

332,109,970 new shares for allotment and issue to LIHL (the
“Capitalisation Issue”)

d. On 12 September 2013, the Company issued 83,600,000 ordinary shares d. RZZ—Z=FNAA+T=8 AARREAFHFERE
of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.98 per share by way of share offer pursuant to E(EERMBKRE) AFK1.98% 7T E1783,600,000
the Public Offer and Placing (as defined in the Prospectus) (the “Share BEREME. 10T LR (TIRMNBEE]) -
Offer”).

e. The Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus) was partially e. RZF—Z=F+AMA - BELERE(EERBRE)
exercised on 4 October 2013 pursuant to which the Company allotted and EHATE - Bt ARATARZZT—=FTANBMU
issued 3,314,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.98 per share G 1.98 78T B K& 817 3,314,000 iR B AR EIfE0.10
on 9 October 2013. BT LR -

All ordinary shares of the Company issued during the year ARREBE—"E—=F+—_A=+—HItEZE

ended 31 December 2013 rank pari passu with the then existing TR @A E T 5 E T IR A AR

ordinary shares in all respects. ZAEREZHAT -
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26. Share-Based Payment Transactions

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

LIHL adopted a share option scheme (the "Scheme”) for a
period of 10 years commencing 27 March 2004. Under the
Scheme, LIHL may grant options to (i) any full-time employee of
LIHL or of any subsidiary; (i) Directors (including Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors) of LIHL or
any subsidiary; (iii) advisors and consultants to LIHL or to any
subsidiary in the areas of technical, financial, legal or corporate
managerial who, at the sole determination of the board of
Directors of LIHL (the “Board”), have contributed to LIHL and/or
any subsidiary (the assessment criteria of which are (a)
contributions to the development and performance of LIHL and/
or subsidiary; (b) quality of work performed for LIHL and/or any
subsidiary; () initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and (d) length of service or contribution to LIHL and/or
any subsidiary).

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2004 Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme of LIHL is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
LIHL in issue as at the date of the commencement of dealings in
the shares on the Stock Exchange, being 144,000,000 shares of
HK$0.005 each after the share subdivision in 2007. Since
termination of the 2004 Share Option Scheme had been
conditionally confirmed and approved in an extraordinary
general meeting of LIHL held on 3 March 2009, no further
options will be offered under the 2004 Share Option Scheme,
but all options granted prior to such termination shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2004 Share
Option Scheme.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
LIHL in issue without prior approval from LIHL's shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders, independent
Non-executive Directors, or any of their respective associates
(including a trustee of a discretionary trust of which they or any
of their family interests are discretionary objects) in excess of
0.1% of LIHL's share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be also approved by LIHL's shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified
in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the
date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may
be exercised at any time during a period commencing on or
after the date on which the option is accepted and deemed to
be granted and expiring on a date to be notified by the Board
of Directors of LIHL to each grantee which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date on which the option is accepted
and deemed to be granted. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of LIHL, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of LIHL's shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of LIHL's share.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the 2009 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of LIHL in
an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2009 for a
period of 10 years commencing from 3 March 2009 as incentive
or reward for the contribution of the eligible participants to the
growth of the LIHL Group and to provide to the LIHL Group
with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate
and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants.

26.

BEBRARR S
—EENFERESTE
LHLERME —EENF = A -+t HEAH
TFE BT E([ZET8)) - RE-TZT
FREREST &) LIHLAT &% F B8 A% 4 ¥ ()LIHL 3k
EEHB AR ZEMZBEES © ()LUHLSEM
WBARzEE(BREIIENTES KRB ILIEHR
TER)  (NVEUHLE=g (B2 ) 2R
EOYLUHLE, ST ERARIEBER 2
LHLS ERIMB AT TIE « B &k sh
¥ERHFEAOBEN S ERER (FFEERA@Q)
HUHLE, ST B AR ERE R EE 2 TE
() BLUHL K S EMME AT TIEZEE : (o)
WBITHIS 2 T8 RoAREM © X (d)ALHL
&/ SAEAK B A R HRS S B/ 2 F ) -

RIBE— T T FRE A S 83 LIHLE R Kb 5
EAETEREMSRENDBE TEHESB
LHLR B B R PAFIn E B 2 AE 1T
0 10% IR —_FZLFROHIFAEREREE
0.005#7T.2 144,000,000 A& {5  ERAALIHLE,
KR -_ZZNF=ZA=ZARBTZRERRFRIRE
R GHRER R ER I — BTN FEBRER
2l o FEIMNBIE SN2 IRIE — ST E AR
AR EL  ERNBRARILR  RIE—FF
MEBREFSMER T 2BRESEEES
BB ATATE ©

ARG LHLAR R B S & - PMEM—F - sH{E
AR A TR KR A R 2 ERED BT
BETZRDEE © TNERBLUHLEZEITERD
1% - WP EERE - BYIFRTESHEM
BESAZHEA(BEE2ESIZETLIA
FEREMNFEZRBEZADESEA) B
B LIHLAZ A8 0.1% sk (& (B8 8 5,000,000 8 7T 2
FERRHE - TR ZEAS LIHL R SR L -

Bt 2 BB R 2 I ATIE TR (T8
B2 BEIES B) RES - BRBELST
MBI 1ET - BRETREENNLR
AEFHEARELUHLEE ML K FIE AR
mE B IEHE (TREEHREAE R TER
EE BB 10F ) BERT « TT{EEARLUHLE
HET - BTERO)FH B ELHLR D R E
HEEFY ARSI AELEBRDFHKN
B RGiLHLEOEE=ZEZ&=HE ©

—EEhFHEREE

LHLIEERER —EZNF = A =B 8T 2R REF
BIRE EHERAFTERETE ([T NAEF
BREE]) BT hAE=ZA=ZARAH
+F - (EAHABRIHBEBUHLEEREE
HERZBESEE - EUHLEEE A& i
MEBERSHEEREEE R/ BER R
REEF -
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26. Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued) 26.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, LIHL may grant options
to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of LIHL and/or any
subsidiary; (b) any director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive director) of LIHL and/or any
subsidiary; and (c) any consultant or adviser (whether
professional or otherwise and whether on an employment or
contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or
unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier, service provider, agent,
customer and business partner of LIHL and/or any subsidiary
who, at the sole determination of the Board of Directors of LIHL,
have contributed or will contribute to LIHL and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets which
must be achieved before an option can be exercised under the
terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. However, the Board of
Directors of LIHL may offer to grant any options subject to such
terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of the
options to be held and/or the performance targets to be
achieved before such Options can be exercised and/or any other
terms as the Board of Directors of LIHL may determine in its
absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of LIHL
must not, in aggregate, exceed 166,860,950 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of LIHL as at 3
March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share Option Scheme
was approved by the shareholders of LIHL. The Board of
Directors of LIHL may seek approval by shareholders in general
meeting to renew such limit provided that it must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of LIHL at the date of approval
of the renewed limit. The maximum aggregate number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme must not exceed such
number of shares as shall represent 30% of the issued share
capital of LIHL from time to time.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of LIHL or
any of their respective associates, and the proposed grant of
options will result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
issued share capital of LIHL on the date of offer and having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares at the
date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of
options must be subject to the approval of the shareholders
taken on a poll at general meeting. The connected person
involved in such proposed grant of options and all other
connected persons of LIHL must abstain from voting in such
general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so
has been stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).
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26.

Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified
in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the
date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the
offer. Options may be exercised at any time during a period to
be notified by the Board of Directors of LIHL to each grantee
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
offer. The exercise price is determined by the directors of LIHL,
and will be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of LIHL's
shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of LIHL's share.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Under the 2004 Share Option Scheme
E-ZENFERETET

26. RO S (48)
“EENFERESTE ()
59 BB AR ZE R B 4 o B B IR (R4S

BHRYEESR) NER  HABNRA

TR1BT - BIRETRLUHLES € Me &K
BAZHR(TERBBELHBHLTI0F)R
BERF 1T - (THEBHLUHLEEET  BEL A
TH=Fhz&Ee®E - ()R E B HLUHL (5 U
E () B B SR ESEAR’RDTFY
W& ¢ K (i) LIHL RS E{E o

BRER EERFBDT

Adjusted
Exercise exercise
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price price
BREESR R AH HES Chgid: THE T8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2005 7.10.2005 7.10.2005-7.10.2008 7.10.2006-26.3.2014 12.32 6.16
—ETRF —EERE e e N R =k S N R =k (note 1)
+AtR —ZZ)N\FTRtH ZE-ME=A=+~H GEAY
2007C 31.8.2007 31.8.2007-1.10.2010 1.10.2008-26.3.2014 37.00 18.50
s | —EEAEF ZEEEEN\A=FT—HE ZET/\F+A-HE (note 1)
NA=+—H —Z-Z%+HR—H ZE-ME=A=+~H GEAY
Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
E-ZZNEBERETET
2009 (note 2) 2.2.2009 2.2.2009-7.2.2012 7.2.2010-26.3.2014 6.40 6.40
—ETNE(EE2) —ETNEF —ETNFAZHE —E-ZTF-AtHZE
—AZH —E-—%-R+tH TE-ME=RAZ+RH
(note 3)
(HEE3)
Notes: 5T -

(1) The exercise price had been adjusted upon sub-division of shares of LIHL of
HK$0.1 to HK$0.005 on 27 September 2007.

2) During the year ended 31 December 2009, 20,400,000 share options were
newly granted as replacement for the cancelled share options under option
types of 2007A and 2007B and this is accounted for as a modification of
the original share options.

(3) Option subject to approval by independent shareholders was proposed and
granted by the Board of Directors of LIHL on 2 February 2009. The
approval was subsequently obtained on 3 March 2009.

W)

@)

3)

3 A B R AT PR )

RZZZTEHFNAZ+HEHUHLARMD B 0.1 A TTir 4l
Z0.005 BT - BHBITEHE -

HEZZZNF+ A=+ —HIEFE  HEE
20,400,000 3 fERR 1 - MR —ZEELFRR-FTTL
FLEPEER D HBRE - WEARBEE S
BN X

LHLEEER ST NF - A—BARERRHEBT
MR B E HER -_TTNF=A=ZABE
oA -
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26. Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued)

The following table discloses movements of LIHL's share options

held by certain employees of the Group and directors of the

Company:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

26. BRI Z (&)
TRBBEAEEETEERAN RSB

4

LIHL B i e o

BE-_Z-HF+-A=1tT—HLFE

Outstanding at Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

R-B-RF R-B-RF

—A—H t=A=t-H

Option type BRERR i RATHE RERTE REREXXN e RATHE

2007C ZERLER 17,020,000 - (17,020,000) -

2009 ZEETNE 66,000 (66,000) - -

17,086,000 (66,000)  (17,020,000) -

Exercisable at end of the year RERT T -

HK$ HKS HK$ HK$

BT BT BT B

Weighted average exercise price per share FRINEFHTEE 18.45 6.40 18.50 -
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLEE

Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at

1 January during 31 December

2013 the year 2013

R-E—=%F RZZE—=F

—A—H +=ZA=+—A~

Option type B s RIARTTIE RERTTE RARTTIE
2005 —ETRF 160,000 (160,000) -
2007C —ETLFR 17,020,000 - 17,020,000
2009 —ETNF 666,000 (600,000) 66,000
17,846,000 (760,000) 17,086,000

Exercisable at end of the year RELLA T1TE 17,086,000
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

Weighted average exercise price per share &R& hiiEF1517E(E 17.94 6.35 18.45

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average closing share price of LIHL immediately before
the exercise dates and at the dates of exercise are HK$14.06

(2013: HK$16.45) and HK$14.50 (2013: HK$16.31),

respectively.

HERNEITEERENS  BORBETER
A% B BRI R IR E A 14.06 8L (=
T—=F 1 1645%870) MRHRITERRZ
MEFHKE AR14508 T(—F — =4

16.317870) °
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27. Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 31 December 2012, Ever Better Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Tianjin Disposal Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) whereby (i) the
Purchaser agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in Li Hua
Jia (Tianjin) for a total cash consideration of RMB545,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$677,980,000) less all loans,
including principal or interest, outstanding and owed by Li Hua
Jia (Tianjin) to subsidiaries of LIHL (“Entrusted Loans”) and (ii)
the Purchaser would provide funding to, and will procure, Li
Hua Jia (Tianjin) to repay the Entrusted Loans. Furthermore, an
amount of RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,488,000) representing part of the consideration payable
shall be withheld by Purchaser as guarantee deposit and
released to the Group on or before 25 April 2014 (the
“Guarantee Deposit”).

Pursuant to the Tianjin Disposal Agreement, the Group shall
reimburse to the purchaser of an amount equal to the net
current liabilities in the management account of Li Hua Jia
(Tianjin) at the completion date after repayment of the
Entrusted Loans and an amount of approximately
RMB4,449,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,535,000)

27.

HE—FEREB LA

%:Ef:¢+:ﬂ5+*5'@%ﬁﬁﬁ

—RARRRENB AR R -FBUE=
(fEEDMuTEET;ﬁ% ([ REHEWHE]) -
BHEOVEDTRBEBEMEE(RE)WEHMK

1 IR SR (E A AR 545,000,0007T (HE
A 49677,980,00078 70) - MR FTAE B (BIE

FEE(RB)BMNLUHLMB AR 2 REELAS
FFE(EZFXEKD)) RMHEFBREES

TeREMBEECKE)EERTER - i
B H GRS RE AR 2,000,000T (FHE
A #)2,488,0007870) E1E(REFEEMIERE - R=
T—NENA -+ REBERZAERTAEE
([RES]) -

BEXEHERR  AEEBERNEEZTER
“ABEFMHERENTERBHAEE(RE)E

BIRENFRBENSHE  AEERRNER
TSR AR 4,449,0007T (HHE R4
55350008 L) XKHFR_ZE—=FNWMA
—t+HEHEKR RREREAARE

was paid by the Group to the Purchaser. The transaction was 540,551,000 7T (FE & 7 47 672,445,000 47T ) °
completed on 25 April 2013 and the final total consideration is
RMB540,551,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$672,445,000).

HK$'000
FAT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of: It ENEERBES
Investment property EME 647,920
Property, plant and equipment ME - BELRRE 12,683
Rental and other receivables TS & E e R IE 2,857
Bank balances and cash RITHEF MR 1,995
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHBRE (57,520)
Other payables and rental deposits received Hih e ke Wil Exe (7,782)
Amounts due to subsidiaries of LIHL FEAT LIHLFI /B A RIFUE (123,156)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 476,997
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — R B 2 Rz Wi
Consideration received and receivable representing: 2 Ut & fEU (KB -
Receipt in advance in 2012 T FIEW A 37,320
Consideration receivable (note) FEUA AR (PR EE) 326,880
Cash consideration received by the Group in 2013  —Z—=FA&£HPELRE 169,713
Cash consideration received by subsidiaries of ZE——FUHLMNB AR B YR & RE
LIHL in 2013 123,156
657,069
Less: Amounts due to subsidiaries of LIHL B FERTLUHLM B 2 51 30R (123,156)
533,913
Net assets disposed of HEZREE (476,997)
Gain on disposal & 2 Has 56,916
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZBRERANTE
Cash consideration received by the Group AEBBWRSRE 169,713
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W BEZRITEERES (1,995)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal in 2013 RZE—=FREEELEZRESRAFRE 167,718
Cash consideration received in 2014 —EFEBERERE 342,526
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27. Disposal of a Subsidiary (continued) 27.

Note: Pursuant to the Tianjin Disposal Agreement, the final payment of
RMB272,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$339,768,000) (the
"’Final Payment”) shall be payable to the Group within nine months from
the completion date by the purchaser and Guarantee Deposit of
RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,488,000) representing
part of the consideration payable withheld by purchaser shall be released
to the Group on or before 25 April 2014. The Final Payment with deferred
payment term is recognised at amortised cost with effective interest of
6.0% p.a. and fair value adjustment of approximately RMB 11,734,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,376,000) is recognised at the
completion date. The Final Payment was received on 24 January 2014.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of
the investment property at the disposal date approximates the
fair value at 31 December 2012. The asset revaluation reserve
and exchange reserve previously recognised in equity was
transferred to retained profits upon disposal of the subsidiary.

28. Operating Lease Arrangements 28.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments to be made under operating
leases in respect of rented premises which falls due as follows:

HE— BB AR (&)

MisE s BEBEXEFLERZE  BHANTKAHENEARRR
AN E 3 18 3R B 272,500,000 7T (18 & 7
#9339,768,0007&7T) ([ & ITHK]) - MREFSARK
2,000,000 7T (#8& 1A 492,488,000 7T ) A E 14
B EMNRE BR-T—NEMA-+RHAxKZ
AR 52 BB L o B SR BIGAF O R 18 1 TR i
HRAHR  BERFEAETF6.0%  MOARE
11,734,000 7t (48 & 7 4915,376,0007% 7T ) H) A F &
FAERNTHKE SRR - RENHER=Z—HF—A
—tmBakE -

NAFEERE  HEBHNREMENFE
B_T-—F+_-A=1+—HAHQFEBE -
ZHREGRERNEESHHEBERELFEER
HEMBARBEREREEF -

RSO

AEEEREBA

RBEMHEHR  ARERARYE 2 EE
R0 2 B R BERAFRLT :

2014 2013

—2-mE | T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 856 789
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF(REEEMRT) 261 1,276
1,117 2,065

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for leasing office premises and staff quarters.

Rentals payable are predetermined at fixed amount. Leases are

generally negotiates for terms ranging from six months to three
years (2013: six months to three years).
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29.

30.

Capital Commitments

9. BAEIE

2014 2013
—E-MF | —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Contracted but not provided for in the consolidated 2 5T 4R R 454 B TS = B
financial statements
— capital expenditure in respect of investment — BB ENEL
properties BERFX - 1,007
— capital expenditure in respect of a property — Bl ERRER
development project ZERFRX 52,761 22,920
Authorised but not contracted for BRIEMEARETH
— capital expenditure in respect of a property — ElEWMERREER
development project BEARFE 1,279,578 1,797,466
1,332,339 1,821,393

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). For
members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income to
the Scheme according to the MPF ordinance.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is
required to contribute and recognise a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes are to
make the specified contributions and recognise the respective
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the schemes
and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the
abovementioned schemes amounted to approximately
HK$566,000 (2013: HK$461,000).

30. BRIKERIETE

5k

AEE2EBESFE ([BRESE)) TH—
EREHRKE - (ERBREDFEINE - KK
BB TORERER G - A% BEAR
AT IR o

HEl

AEBETENE THEMBERIEEERN
R BB 75 BURHE 1E 0 B 2 B AR AR MU B Y
KB - AEBEREIHALEXNANEER
DELBIFTEIAE BB RAEH] - AEMEpLE LA
B — MR I 2 A 48 HR I R IR IR A 2
ﬁi%‘zgﬂ%?&ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%lﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁzmﬁﬁﬁ
KRIE -

AR EMETEIR R ABENARAERREY
/566,000 C(ZZF—=4F : 461,000/87T) °
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31. Related Party Disclosures

94

(a) Transactions

During the year, other than those disclosed in respective
notes, the Group had entered into the following
significant transactions with the following related parties:

1. EEATIHE

@ X5

FABREXMEMEESEIN

REH

BEETMBEEALTETTIERARS

Nature of
Name of related party Relationship transaction 2014 2013
BEALTER 1R REHE —E—-mF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(i) Beijing Chow Tai Fook Related company Rental income received - 1,475
Jewellery Company (note a) B UL WA
Limited BE N A Building management - 49
ERERBRESTARLR  (Mi&a) fee income received
(“Beijing Chow Tai Fook”) BRI A
(i) Hui Fu Commercial Fellow subsidiary Interest expense paid - 35
Consultancy (Shanghai) (note b) EANMERAX
Co., Ltd.* EEIN)=MNGIE )
SRMGER(L8)BRAA
(iii) Lifestyle (China) Investment Fellow subsidiary Interest expense paid - 402
Company Limited* (note b) BN R
FlE(RBDZRERR LA A Z 8 AR (FIFED)
(iv) Grand Kinetic Limited Fellow subsidiary Rental expense paid 360 110
("Grand Kinetic”) (note b) (note ¢)
BEZHRAE ([B=Z]) RZRK B AR (MisEb) BERHESIH (Mo
(v) Shenyang Forever Smart Fellow subsidiary Rental expense paid 104 -
Company Limited* (note b) ENES
B ERBEARAR A Z M8 AR (FIFED)
(vi) Li Yi Da Commercial and Fellow subsidiary Project management 6,187 2,442
Real Estate (Shanghai) (note b) income received
Company Limited* RAEWB AR (b)) SWIEEBEERIA
MieEmxa%(8)
BRAA
(vii) Shanghai Ongoing Fellow subsidiary Rental expense paid 380 396
Department Store Limited (note b) BRI H
EBAKXBEEBRAT E 2K B AR (MisEb) Project management 850 290
income received
BEHIE B BRI
(vii)Sogo Hong Kong Fellow subsidiary Management service 190 69
Company Limited (note b) expense paid
EH(EBE)BERRAA RRE AT (MEEb) BRERRE S
Notes: B & -

(@) Beijing Chow Tai Fook is a subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery

(@) ERAABRBAREBREEEAER AR ZH

BRA ARBZEEZERARLUHLZ &%
2BERPEL RERAELIHIERAKXE
At Al tFRARBATEENE
AL -

Group Limited. Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun,

Henry, directors of LIHL, the immediate holding company of the

Company, have control over Beijing Chow Tai Fook. As such,

Beijing Chow Tai Fook is a related party of the Group.
(b) The entities are subsidiaries of LIHL. (b) ARRBLUHLZ HTBAR]
RERBERAB(RAAFAN—ME2EMNBER
7)) ABEEE-EYE  AEEER-F
T=FXNHEER®60,0008 T HEHA
=4

(c) The Group had also paid rental deposit of HK$60,000 in relation to (a]
the property leased by Grand Kinetic to City Vision Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) for a term of three years
in 2013.

* The English name is translated for identification purpose only. * HEANEBRES2EZE -

Lifestyle Properties Development Limited Annual Report 2014



31. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of the executive directors of the
Company prior to the Listing was determined by the
board of directors of LIHL having regard to the
performance of the individuals and comparable companies
in the market. Details of which together with the other
highest paid key management personnel are disclosed in
note 12 above. Subsequent to the Listing, the
remuneration of executive directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

32. Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had
recognised Remuneration borne by LIHL without recharging to
the Group amounting to HK$ 1,228,000 (2014 nil), as deemed
contribution from LIHL and credited to capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, as part of the
Reorganisation, the aggregated amount of HK$1,025,741,000
(2014: nil) had been settled prior to the Listing by way of issue
of shares of the Company to LIHL.

1. BEANTHE (&)

(b) EEEBASHMH
ELEMAARBMITESR Z S HLHL
EEgRERNRRETIS LA LRAR
ZIBSRFE - EBEREMEME 2 &2
ABBEN EXME12 - £ EWRHIT
EEREMTFEEBASHEHART
¥MZ B ERN KRR L TISBERE

32. TEBHRERSH

HE-_Z—=F1+-_A=+—HILEE K&
B RERHM (R LUHLAE - WEmAEE
EY) 1,228,000 0 (ZE—MWF : &) - fEAR
YELHLE & Rt AB AN o

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=1+—HIFE 5
EHEHIBTE - —51,025,741,0008 (=&
—PO4F - )R FIEE R LT ATH AR R A LHL
TR MES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A T B R M ()
for the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-ZT-ME+-A=+—HLEE

33.

96

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the details of

the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

33.

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital

e300 PNCES
RZF-MFER=-FT—=F+-A=t—H"
ARAZEBMBABFERT -

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group

Principal activities

Bl ERTRBERE REEAELL
AT ER PR3t B B ERE-N PR FEEK
2014 2013
=F-mE | T =F
Gain High Limited Hong Kong Share capital 100% 100%  Property investment
SFAERAR 9 April 2009 HK$1 MR E
B &A1 AT
—ZEZENFMANA
Lifestyle Properties Services Hong Kong Share capital 100% 100%  Secretarial services and
Limited 12 November 2012 HK$1 trademark holder
MiEERBERA A B &A1 %8 T WMERBEEFHEA
—E-——F+—A+=H
FECEEEHRA(LH) PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Consultancy services
BRDA# 18 December 2012 RMB 2,000,000 R RS
Lichen Enterprise Management il FMERARE
Consulting (Shanghai) —E—=-F+=A+NH 2,000,000 7T
Co. Limited*
BREMNBEEEAR AR # PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Property investment
Lifestyle Plaza (Harbin) Co., Ltd.* 16 October 1995 US$18,000,000 YIERE
# AR
—hAEF+A+KXE 18,000,000 % 7T
EZHE(E2)ARQA4 PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Property investment
Lifestyle Plaza (Qingdao) 31 December 1995 RMB225,000,000 MERE
Co., Limited* F EfMERARE
—WNEF+=A 225,000,000 7T
=+—H
BSREBEREBRARH PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Property development
Shenyang Yifu Company Limited* 12 March 2007 US$89,990,000 L/E X4
Gl &R
—EZT+F=A+=H 89,990,000 %7
* The English name is translated for identification purpose only. * BREAXEERIH2E R -
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly # ZEARIRPEKHEINERE -

foreign-owned enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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34. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 34. AR BB K

Information about the statement of financial position of the RERABSEER - ARG IRRKER S
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: ¥E
2014 2013
=E-mE | ZT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Non-current asset EMENEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBAFIRE 1,025,741 1,025,741
Current assets MENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE Uk — B B8 R B3R E 127,466 133,031
Prepayments TEfFFOE 145 275
Bank balances and cash RITETFNRS 455 1,991
128,066 135,297
Current liabilities nEBE
Accrued charges EEtER 1,786 2,704
Net current assets MEVEEFE 126,280 132,593
Net assets FEE 1,152,021 1,158,334
Capital and reserves BEARRGEE
Share capital &N 41,911 41,911
Reserves (note 35) 1 (97 35) 1,110,110 1,116,423
1,152,021 1,158,334

35. Reserves of the Company 35. "R EIfREE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R RE HitEie st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%F—HF—H - (12,681) (12,681)
Loss and total comprehensive FREAMZEAEZS
expense for the year - (22,174) (22,174)
Issue of shares pursuant to RIFEHEITZ R
the Reorganisation 1,025,732 - 1,025,732
Issue of shares pursuant to RIEE AT BT Z D
Capitalisation Issue (33,211) - (33,211)
Issue of shares pursuant to RIER DB EEIT RS
the Share Offer 157,332 - 157,332
Issue of shares pursuant to BARTT(F B RE A A B 1T
the exercise of Over-Allotment Option 7 i&{» 6,066 - 6,066
Expenses incurred in connection with BRABTRMD 2
issue of shares (4,641) - (4,641)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,151,278 (34,855) 1,116,423
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FRIBL N EHE S H
for the year - (6,313) (6,313)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WHF+=—F=+—H 1,151,278 (41,168) 1,110,110
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A T B R M ()

for the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-ZT-—NE+-_A=+—HIFE

35. Reserves of the Company (continued) 35.

Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Companies Law"), dividends may be paid only out of profits.
In addition, the Companies Law permits, subject to a solvency
test and the provisions, if any, of the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association, the payment of dividends and
distributions out of share premium account. The Company’s
reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2014
consisted of share premium of HK$1,151,278,000 (2013:
HK$1,151,278,000).

98 Lifestyle Properties Development Limited Annual Report 2014

R R ()

$E%Fﬁfﬁxﬁ¥%/£1ﬁu%zzﬁﬂm£< hAN—4F

F=AED  SEFEARIER]) REETEAR
ALEFI DR o BN - A mﬂm ELU &
RN B BFAE QA EE SR A4 NAR
BES(ImA)BERT E\lJﬂéﬂwﬁiﬁé{E
BEXAREED R R-ZT—WNFE+ = A
=+—8" $"7271ﬁ“/ﬁef‘%ﬁﬁ}ﬂx
19 3% {8 #91,151,278,000/8 Tt ( — B — =& :
1,151,278,000# 7T ) ©



Five-Year Group Financial Summary

o A 4 [ B R

Results ES |
For the year ended 31 December BEt+-—BA=1+—HItFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—F-mE | =% —T--F —T——F ZT-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FET FHET FAT
Turnover SRR - 4,490 20,809 14,950 1,424
(Loss) profit attributable to KAREB AEMG
owners of the Company (E518) = A (13,878) 58,657 94,191 148,169 20,207
(Loss) earnings per share TR (E18) & F)
(HK cents) (Gz:201D)
— Basic — &R (3.31) 38.14 N/A* N/A* N/A*
Assets and liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-WUE | —T—=F —T——F —T——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT FET FET FHET
Non-current assets ETBEE 1,467,171 1,467,313 1,379,120 1,846,580 2,279,061
Current assets MEVEE 598,219 666,641 785,363 131,369 202,909
Current liabilities mENEE (207,544) (207,275)  (1,428,498)  (1,369,495) (1,771,181)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (165,231) (169,872) (260,809) (242,594)  (259,619)
Net assets BEFAE 1,692,615 1,756,807 475,176 365,860 451,170

*

No earning per share information is presented for the years ended 31 December

2012, 2011 & 2010 as it is not considered meaningful having regard to the capital
structure of the Group in 2012, 2011 & 2010.

© ARSREFARHAREHRL-T-—F “F—%K
—F-FFT-AS - BMAARBTELAES AL

BR2IIZEER -
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Particulars of Major Properties

EC A E S

Investment Properties

Descriptions

L

Gross floor
area

REEHEE
(sg. m.)
(7K

rEME

Attributable

Nature interest
of property
TEH

MIRMEE PE{h R

to the Group

Category
of lease

HEER

1. A commercial building,

located at Nos. 152-158 Jiaozhou Road,

Shibei District,
Qingdao City,
Shandong Province,
the PRC

— B ERE
A

IWEE

585

mit&

2N B 152-158 5%

2. A commercial building

located at No. 86 Zhongyang Avenue,

Daoli District,
Harbin City,

Heilongjiang Province,

the PRC
—EEEXNE
i
BRETA
WEERAET
BEEE

HR oL K 86 5%

Land held under a Property Development Project

Descriptions

R

Gross
floor area
HIEm
[
sg.m.

Site area

sq.m.

26,507.07

10,090.12

Commercial 100%

[GES

Commercial 100%

EES

MEBREE LM

Attributable

Nature of
property

interest to  Category

the Group
rEE

fHEE WRME BAER

Stage of
of lease

HEER

Medium
H A

Medium

T

Expected Lot

completion completion

TRER BRI

number

RIS

1. Anparcel of land at western side of
Zhengyang Street, Shenhe District,
Shenyang City, Liaoning Province,

the PRC

P
EBLEGT
BB EGERA

100

188,252

31,376

Commercial

GES

100%

Medium  Preliminary
HHf work
AIETRE

Lifestyle Properties Development Limited Annual Report 2014
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Lifestyle

Properties Development Limited
Moo oE K R AR 2 A

Lifestyle Properties Development Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

7 i E % e AT B A )

(7 BH 20 Sk M EROL A R A )

T v Sl S T SR A 5 55 9%

R D204

Telephone: (852) 2833 8338
Facsimile: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lsppty.com.hk
www.lifestyleproperties.com.hk
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